ADVENTRX PHARMACEUTICALS INC Form DEF 14A May 27, 2010

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549 SCHEDULE 14A (Rule 14a-101)

SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION
Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant b Filed by a Party other than the Registrant o Check the appropriate box: o Preliminary Proxy Statement

- o Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- b Definitive Proxy Statement
- o Definitive Additional Materials
- o Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

ADVENTRX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- b No fee required.
- o Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11.
 - 1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
 - 2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
- 3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
 - 4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
 - 5) Total fee paid:
 - o Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

o Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for

which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.						
1) Amount Previously Paid:						
2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:						
3) Filing Party:						
4) Date Filed:						

ADVENTRX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. 6725 Mesa Ridge Road, Suite 100 San Diego, CA 92121

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS To Be Held June 30, 2010

The 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of ADVENTRX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. will be held on June 30, 2010 at 9:00 a.m. Pacific time, at the offices of DLA Piper LLP (US), 4365 Executive Drive, Suite 1100, San Diego, California 92121. The meeting is being held for the following purposes, as more fully described in the accompanying proxy statement:

- 1. To elect five directors to hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until their successors are elected and qualified;
- 2. To ratify the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010; and
- 3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on May 17, 2010 will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof. A list of stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting will be available for inspection by any stockholder for any purpose relating to the meeting during ordinary business hours at our corporate offices located at 6725 Mesa Ridge Road, Suite 100, San Diego, California, USA 92121 for ten days prior to the meeting, and will also be available for inspection at the meeting.

Your vote is important. Please read the proxy statement and the instructions on the enclosed proxy card and then, whether or not you plan to attend the meeting in person, and no matter how many shares you own, please submit your proxy promptly by signing, dating and returning your proxy card in the postage paid envelope provided. This will not prevent you from voting in person at the meeting. It will, however, help to assure a quorum and avoid added proxy solicitation costs.

You may revoke your proxy at any time before the vote is taken by delivering to our corporate secretary a written revocation or a proxy with a later date or by voting your shares in person at the meeting, in which case your prior proxy would be disregarded.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Brian M. Culley Chief Executive Officer

San Diego, California May 27, 2010

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Stockholder Meeting To Be Held on June 30, 2010. This notice of meeting, the proxy statement for the meeting and our annual report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 are available at https://www.proxydocs.com/anx.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE MEETING	1
BOARD OF DIRECTORS	5
NOMINEES FOR ELECTION TO THE BOARD	5
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	7
<u>DIRECTOR NOMINATIONS</u>	11
COMMUNICATIONS WITH DIRECTORS	13
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	13
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	14
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS	15
EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION	19
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	25
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT	30
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES	31
PROPOSAL 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	32
PROPOSAL 2 RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	32
OTHER MATTERS	32
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2011 ANNUAL MEETING	33

ADVENTRX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 6725 Mesa Ridge Road, Suite 100 San Diego, CA 92121 (858) 552-0866

PROXY STATEMENT

2010 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS To Be Held On June 30, 2010

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE MEETING

Date, Time and Place

ADVENTRX Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the Company, we or us), is furnishing this proxy statement and the enclosed proxy card in connection with the solicitation of proxies by our board of directors for use at the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 30, 2010, at 9:00 a.m. Pacific time, at the offices of DLA Piper LLP (US), 4365 Executive Drive, Suite 1100, San Diego, California 92121, and at any adjournment or postponement thereof (the Annual Meeting). These materials are being mailed to stockholders on or about May 27, 2010.

Purpose of the Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting is being held for the following purposes:

- 1. To elect five directors to hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until their successors are elected and qualified;
- 2. To ratify the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010; and
- 3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Record Date; Shares Outstanding and Entitled to Vote

Our board of directors has fixed May 17, 2010 as the record date for the determination of holders of our common stock entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof. At the close of business on the record date, we had 14,296,085 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. Each stockholder of record as of the record date is entitled to one vote at the Annual Meeting for each share of common stock held by such stockholder on the record date. Stockholders do not have cumulative voting rights. No other shares of our capital stock are entitled to notice of or to vote at the Annual Meeting.

How to Vote Your Shares

If you hold your shares in your own name, you may submit a proxy by mail, or you may vote by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. If you choose to submit a proxy by mail, simply mark the enclosed proxy card, date and sign it, and return it in the postage paid envelope provided. By casting your vote by proxy, you are authorizing the individuals listed on the proxy card to vote your shares in accordance with your instructions. You may also attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person.

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT. You should submit your proxy even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person.

If your shares are held in the name of a broker, bank or other nominee, you will receive instructions from the holder of record that you must follow for your shares to be voted. The availability of telephonic or Internet voting will depend on the broker s or bank s voting process. Please check with your broker or bank and follow the

Table of Contents

voting procedure your broker or bank provides to vote your shares. Also, please note that if the holder of record of your shares is a broker, bank or other nominee and you wish to vote in person at the Annual Meeting, you must request a legal proxy from your broker, bank or other nominee that holds your shares and present that proxy and proof of identification at the Annual Meeting.

How to Change Your Vote

You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is exercised by:

Delivering to our corporate secretary a written notice of revocation, dated later than the proxy you wish to revoke, before voting begins at the Annual Meeting;

Delivering to our corporate secretary a duly executed proxy bearing a date later than the proxy you wish to revoke, before voting begins at the Annual Meeting; or

Attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person (your attendance at the Annual Meeting, in and of itself, will not revoke the proxy).

Any written notice of revocation or later dated proxy should be delivered to:

ADVENTRX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 6725 Mesa Ridge Road, Suite 100 San Diego, CA 92121 Attention: Corporate Secretary

Alternatively, you may hand deliver a written revocation notice or a later dated proxy to our corporate secretary at the Annual Meeting before voting begins.

If your shares of our common stock are held by a broker, bank or other nominee, you must follow the instructions provided by the broker, bank or other nominee if you wish to change your vote.

Proxies

If you provide specific voting instructions on your proxy card, your shares will be voted at the Annual Meeting in accordance with your instructions. If you hold shares in your name and sign and return a proxy card without marking specific voting instructions, your shares will be voted For each of the nominees to our board of directors listed on the enclosed proxy card and in this proxy statement, and For the ratification of the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010.

At this time, we are unaware of any matters, other than those set forth above, that may properly come before the Annual Meeting. If any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, the persons named in the enclosed proxy card, or their duly constituted substitutes acting at the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof, will be deemed authorized to vote or otherwise act on such matters in accordance with their judgment.

The persons named in the enclosed proxy card, or their duly constituted substitutes acting at the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof, may propose and vote for one or more adjournments or postponements of the Annual Meeting, including adjournments or postponements to permit further solicitations of proxies. Proxies solicited may be voted only at the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof and will not be used for any other meeting of our stockholders.

Broker Non-Votes

A broker non-vote occurs when a nominee (typically a broker or bank) holding shares for a beneficial owner (typically referred to as shares being held in street name) submits a proxy for the Annual Meeting, but does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner and does not have discretionary authority to vote the shares with respect to that proposal. Shares that constitute broker non-votes will be counted as present at the Annual Meeting for the purpose of establishing a quorum, but will not be counted as having voting power to vote on the proposal in question. Brokers generally have discretionary authority to vote on routine matters. The ratification of the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP as our independent

2

Table of Contents

registered public accounting firm is considered a routine matter. The election of directors is considered a non-routine matter and brokers do not have discretionary authority to vote on the election of directors.

Quorum and Required Votes

A majority of the aggregate number of shares of our common stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting must be present in person or by proxy in order for there to be a quorum at the Annual Meeting and for any action to be taken at the Annual Meeting. If you submit a properly executed proxy, regardless of whether you abstain from voting on one or more matters, your shares will be counted as present at the Annual Meeting for the purpose of determining a quorum.

Proposal 1: If a quorum exists at the Annual Meeting, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock having voting power present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting is required for the election of each director nominee. This majority voting standard means that a director nominee will be elected if the number of shares voted. For that director nominee exceeds the number of shares voted. Against and that Abstain from voting with respect to that director nominee. Accordingly, an abstention will have the same effect as a negative vote. Broker non-votes will not be counted and will have no effect on the outcome of this proposal. Pursuant to our bylaws, an incumbent director who is not elected because he or she does not receive the requisite affirmative votes at the Annual Meeting will continue to serve as a director until a successor has been elected and qualified or until such director is earlier resignation or removal.

Proposal 2: If a quorum exists at the Annual Meeting, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock having voting power present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting is required to ratify the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP. An abstention will have the same effect as a negative vote. A broker or other nominee will generally have discretionary authority to vote on this proposal because it is considered a routine matter, and therefore we do not expect broker non-votes with respect to this proposal.

Solicitation of Proxies

We are soliciting proxies from our stockholders on behalf of our board of directors and will pay for all costs incurred in connection with the solicitation. In addition to solicitation by mail, our directors, officers and employees may solicit proxies from our stockholders in person or by telephone, facsimile, e-mail or other electronic methods without additional compensation other than reimbursement for their actual expenses.

We may retain a proxy solicitation firm to assist us in the solicitation of proxies for the Annual Meeting. We would pay such firm, if any, customary fees expected to be no more than \$15,000 and would reimburse the firm for its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses.

Arrangements also will be made with brokerage firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for the forwarding of solicitation material to the beneficial owners of stock held of record by such persons, and we will reimburse such custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in connection therewith.

If You Receive More Than One Proxy Card

If you receive more than one proxy card, it means you hold shares that are registered in more than one account. To ensure that all of your shares are voted, please mark your votes and date, sign and return each proxy card.

Householding Information

The Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, has adopted rules that permit brokers, banks and other nominees to satisfy the delivery requirements for proxy statements and annual reports with respect to two or more stockholders sharing the same address by delivering a single copy of such document addressed to those stockholders. This process, which is commonly referred to as householding, potentially means extra convenience for stockholders and cost savings for companies.

3

Table of Contents

This year, a number of brokers, banks and other nominees with account holders who are our stockholders may be householding our proxy materials. This means that only one copy of this proxy statement may have been sent to multiple stockholders in a household. If, at any time, you no longer wish to participate in householding and would prefer to receive a separate proxy statement and annual report from the other stockholder(s) sharing your address, please (i) notify your broker, bank or other nominee, (ii) direct your written request to ADVENTRX Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 6725 Mesa Ridge Road, Suite 100, San Diego, California 9212, Attn: Corporate Secretary or (iii) contact us by phone at (858) 552-0866. We undertake to deliver promptly, upon any such oral or written request, a separate copy of our proxy materials to a stockholder at a shared address to which a single copy of these documents was delivered. Stockholders who currently receive multiple copies of our proxy materials at their address and would like to request householding of their communications should notify their broker, bank or other nominee, or contact our corporate secretary at the above address or phone number.

If you have any questions about voting your shares, please contact us at (858) 552-0866.

4

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The current members of our board of directors, their ages as of May 17, 2010, the positions they hold and the year in which they commenced service on our board, are as follows:

Name	Age	Position/Committee Membership*	Director Since
Michael M. Goldberg	51	Audit Committee and Compensation Committee (chair)	2004
Odysseas D. Kostas	35	Audit Committee	2010
Jack Lief	64	Chair of the Board, Audit Committee (chair) and Compensation Committee	2006
Mark J. Pykett	46	Nominating & Governance Committee (chair)	2004
Eric K. Rowinsky	53	Nominating & Governance Committee	2008

^{*} Each of the directors served in the capacity set forth in the table for all of 2009, except Dr. Kostas who was appointed to our board and the audit committee in February 2010. Dr. Pykett served on the audit committee during 2009 and until February 2010.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that each director elected or appointed to our board of directors shall hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders following such election or appointment and until the director's successor is elected and qualified. Our bylaws provide that vacancies on our board of directors, including those resulting from an increase in the authorized number of directors, may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors, even if less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director. Any director appointed as a result of a vacancy shall hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until a successor is elected and qualified. Pursuant to our bylaws, the authorized number of directors may be not less than three nor more than nine, with the exact number to be fixed by resolutions adopted from time to time by our board of directors. Our board of directors has set the current number of authorized directors at five. Accordingly, five directors have been nominated by our board of directors for election at the Annual Meeting.

NOMINEES FOR ELECTION TO THE BOARD

Each of our current directors has been nominated for re-election to our board of directors. The paragraphs below provide information as of the date of this proxy statement about each director. The information presented includes each director s principal occupation and business experience during at least the past five years, the names of other publicly held companies at which he currently serves as a director or has served as a director during the past five years, information regarding involvement in certain legal or administrative proceedings during the past ten years, if applicable, and the experience, qualifications, attributes or skills that led the nominating and governance committee and our board of directors to determine that the person should serve on our board of directors. There are no family relationships among any of our directors and executive officers.

Michael M. Goldberg, M.D., M.B.A. Dr. Goldberg has served as a director since January 2004. Dr. Goldberg currently is a managing partner of Montaur Capital Partners, an investment firm, a position he has held since January 2007. From August 1990 to January 2007, Dr. Goldberg was chairman and chief executive officer of Emisphere Technologies, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company. Prior to this, he was a vice president for The First Boston Corporation, where he was a founding member of the Healthcare Banking Group. Dr. Goldberg also serves on the board of directors of Urigen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a specialty pharmaceutical company focused on therapeutic products for urological disorders. Dr. Goldberg received a B.S. from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, an M.D. from Albany Medical College of Union University and an M.B.A. from Columbia University Graduate School of Business. Dr. Goldberg s years of executive experience at a development-stage biopharmaceutical company give him unique insight to our product development, operational and financing challenges and opportunities.

5

Table of Contents

Odysseas D. Kostas, M.D. Dr. Kostas has served as a director since February 2010. Dr. Kostas is currently an attending physician and one of seven hospitalists at Greenwich Hospital, a member of the Yale New Haven Health System and a subsidiary of Greenwich Health Care Services, Inc. He has been at Greenwich Hospital since May 2008. At Greenwich Hospital, Dr. Kostas is a member of various committees that oversee aspects of the hospital s operational decision-making. Since March 2007, Dr. Kostas has provided advisory services to boards of directors of biotechnology companies, primarily in the area of strategic and partnering transactions, including ImClone Systems Incorporated prior to its sale to Eli Lilly and Company. In May 2003, Dr. Kostas founded a private medical practice that he owned and operated, treating over 2,000 patients, until May 2008. Dr. Kostas holds a B.S. in biology from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and an M.D. from the University of Texas Southwestern Medical School and is board certified in internal medicine. Dr. Kostas years of experience as a practicing physician and with hospital and private practice operational decision-making provides our board with perspective on the potential value of our product candidates and drug development programs to patients and healthcare practitioners, our potential customers.

Jack Lief. Mr. Lief has served as a director since September 2006 and as chair of our board of directors since May 2007. Mr. Lief is a co-founder and since April 1997 has served as president, chief executive officer and a director of Arena Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a publicly held clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company focused on discovering, developing and commercializing oral drugs that target G protein-coupled receptors in four major therapeutic areas: cardiovascular, central nervous system, inflammatory and metabolic diseases. He also has served as Arena s chairman of the board since October 2007. From 1995 to April 1997, Mr. Lief served as an advisor and consultant to numerous biopharmaceutical organizations. From 1989 to 1994, Mr. Lief served as senior vice president, corporate development and secretary of Cephalon, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company. From 1983 to 1989, Mr. Lief served as director of business development and strategic planning for Alpha Therapeutic Corporation, a manufacturer of biological products. Mr. Lief joined Abbott Laboratories, a pharmaceutical company, in 1972, where he served until 1983, most recently as the head of international marketing research. Mr. Lief is a director of Accumetrics, Inc., a developer and marketer of diagnostic tests, ReqMed Company, Ltd., a provider of partnering opportunities, R&D strategies and bio-venture funding, and TaiGen Biotechnology Co., Ltd., a biotechnology company. Mr. Lief is also an executive board member of BIOCOM, a life science industry association representing more than 550 member companies in San Diego and Southern California, and he was the chairman of BIOCOM from March 2005 to March 2006. Mr. Lief holds a B.A. from Rutgers University and an M.S. in psychology (experimental and neurobiology) from Lehigh University. Mr. Lief s extensive and current executive leadership and management experience in biopharmaceutical companies brings to our board of directors the perspective of a leader managing similar drug development, regulatory, commercialization and financing issues as our company. In addition, his over 40 years of experience in the life sciences industry provides unique insight to our board.

Mark J. Pykett, Ph.D., M.B.A., V.M.D. Dr. Pykett has served as a director since February 2004. Dr. Pykett currently is chief executive officer of Talaris Advisors LLC, a privately held integrated, drug development advisory firm, a position he has held since January 2010. From November 2004 until January 2010, Dr. Pykett was president and chief operating officer of Alseres Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (formerly Boston Life Sciences, Inc.), a publicly held company engaged in the development of therapeutic and diagnostic products primarily for disorders in the central nervous system. From May 1996 until April 2003, Dr. Pykett served as president and chief executive officer and a director of Cytomatrix, LLC, a privately held biotechnology company focused on the research, development and commercialization of novel cell-based therapies that Dr. Pykett co-founded. Cytomatrix was acquired by Cordlife, Pte. Ltd., a subsidiary of CyGenics Ltd., a publicly held biotechnology company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange. From April 2003 to February 2004, Dr. Pykett served as president of Cordlife and then as president and director of CyGenics from February 2004 until November 2004. In addition, Dr. Pykett served as a director of Cordlife from April 2003 through November 2005 and a director of Oramax, LLC, a development stage dental implant company developing biomaterials for dental prostheses, from 2000 through 2006. Dr. Pykett held an adjunct faculty position at the Harvard School of Public Health from 1997 to 2004. Dr. Pykett graduated Phi Beta Kappa, summa cum laude from Amherst College, with a veterinary degree, and Phi Zeta, summa cum laude, from the University of

Pennsylvania with a doctorate in molecular biology. He also earned an M.B.A., Beta Gamma Sigma, from Northeastern University. Dr. Pykett completed post-doctoral fellowships at the University of Pennsylvania and Harvard University. Dr. Pykett s extensive drug development experience and his years of executive

6

Table of Contents

experience at development-stage biopharmaceutical companies provide our board with perspective on drug development and regulatory strategy for our product candidates and insight to our operational and financial challenges and opportunities.

Eric K. Rowinsky, M.D. Dr. Rowinsky has served as a director since February 2008. Dr. Rowinsky currently is a scientific advisor to ImClone Systems Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eli Lilly and Company, and an independent consultant to several other biotechnology, venture capital, private equity and consulting companies that focus on, or invest in companies that focus on, the development of cancer therapies. He has been an adjunct professor of medicine (division of medical oncology) at the New York University School of Medicine since September 2008. From February 2005 to December 2009, Dr. Rowinsky served as the chief medical officer of ImClone Systems Incorporated, a biopharmaceutical company focused on advancing oncology care which was acquired by Eli Lilly and Company in November 2008, and additionally served as executive vice president of ImClone from December 2007 to December 2009 and senior vice president from February 2005 to December 2007. His responsibilities at ImClone included managing clinical development, medical affairs, regulatory affairs and corporate strategy. Dr. Rowinsky held the position of director of the Institute of Drug Development at the Cancer Therapy and Research Center from 2002 to 2004 and was the director of clinical research at the IDD from 1996 to 2002. In addition, he held the SBC Endowed Chair for Early Drug Development at the IDD. From 1996 to 2006, Dr. Rowinsky was also a clinical professor of medicine (division of medical oncology and hematology) at the University of Texas Health Science Center, San Antonio, Texas. Dr. Rowinsky also served as an associate professor of oncology at the Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine from 1988 until 1996. Prior to joining ImClone, Dr. Rowinsky was a longstanding National Cancer Institute principal investigator on U01 anticancer drug development grants and a lead investigator on early developmental studies of many classes of cytotoxic agents and targeted therapeutics, including paclitaxel, docetaxel, irinotecan, vinorelbine, topotecan, erlotinib, gefitinib, panitumumab, temsirolimus and ridaforolimus. He served on the Board of Scientific Counselors of the National Cancer Institute from 2004 to 2007. Dr. Rowinsky is the editor-in-chief of Investigational New Drugs and an associate editor of Cancer Research, Clinical Cancer Research, Annals of Oncology, and several other oncology journals and has published over 295 manuscripts in both the preclinical and clinical research fields. Dr. Rowinsky also serves on the board of directors of Biogen Idec Inc., a global biotechnology company. From December 2007 to March 2008, he served on the board of directors of Tapestry Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company focused on the development of cancer therapies. Dr. Rowinsky received a B.A. degree from New York University and an M.D. degree from the Vanderbilt University School of Medicine. Following his residency in internal medicine, he completed fellowship training in medical oncology at the Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine. Dr. Rowinsky s expertise in anticancer drug development, his extensive experience as a member of scientific advisory boards, oncology advisory boards and project advisory boards of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, and his experience presenting aspects of several new drug applications to the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, provide unique insight to our board of directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Meetings of the Board and its Committees

As required under the rules of the NYSE Amex and our corporate governance guidelines, our board of directors meets on a regular basis as often as necessary to fulfill its responsibilities, including at least once each quarter, and our independent directors meet at least annually in executive session without the presence of non-independent directors and management. During 2009, our board of directors met nine times and took action by unanimous written consent twice, the audit committee met four times, the compensation committee met four times and the nominating and governance committee met once. Each member of our board of directors nominated for re-election at the Annual Meeting who served on our board during all or part of 2009 attended 75% or more of the aggregate of (i) the total number of board meetings held during the period of such member s service and (ii) the total number of meetings of committees on which such member served during the period of such member s service.

Table of Contents

Director Independence

Our board of directors has determined that each of our current directors, Dr. Goldberg, Dr. Kostas, Mr. Lief, Dr. Pykett and Dr. Rowinsky, is an independent director as such term is defined in Section 803A(2) of the NYSE Amex LLC Company Guide. In addition, with respect to Alexander J. Denner, who served as a member of our board of directors during 2009 until October 16, 2009, our board of directors determined that he was an independent director during his service as a director. In addition to the consulting services transactions involving Dr. Pykett and Dr. Rowinsky described below under Certain Relationships and Related Transactions Consulting Services Agreement with Talaris Advisors LLC and Director Compensation Consulting Services Agreement with Eric K. Rowinsky, in making its independence determinations, our board of directors considered that we are required to cause our board of directors to nominate Dr. Kostas and, in 2009, Dr. Denner, to our board of directors as the Purchaser Designee pursuant to the terms of that certain Rights Agreement, dated July 27, 2005, as amended, or the Rights Agreement, as well as each of Dr. Kostas and Dr. Denner s relationship with certain entities affiliated with Carl C. Icahn, which entities are Purchasers under the Rights Agreement, and such entities (a) ownership position in our company and (b) rights under the Rights Agreement entitling them to, among other things, participate in future sales by us of our securities and cause our board of directors to nominate a director nominee selected by them. With respect to Dr. Kostas, our board of directors also considered the consulting services he provided to us in 2008 and the fees we paid to him for those services, which were less than \$5,000 in the aggregate. After considering these relationships and transactions, our board of directors determined they are not such that would interfere with Dr. Kostas or Dr. Denner s ability to exercise independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director.

Board Committees

Our board of directors currently has a standing audit committee, compensation committee and nominating and governance committee. In February 2008, our board of directors created a research and development committee, but disbanded that committee in March 2010.

Audit Committee. The audit committee currently consists of Mr. Lief (chair), Dr. Goldberg and Dr. Kostas. Dr. Kostas was appointed to the audit committee in February 2010. Dr. Pykett served as a member of the audit committee during 2009 and until February 2010. Our board of directors has determined that each member of the audit committee is an independent director under Section 803A(2) of the NYSE Amex LLC Company Guide and meets the applicable additional eligibility standards for audit committee service under Section 803B(2) of the NYSE Amex LLC Company Guide. In addition, our board of directors has determined that Mr. Lief qualifies as an audit committee financial expert as defined in Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The purpose of the audit committee is to oversee our accounting and financial reporting processes and audits of our financial statements and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. The responsibilities of the audit committee include appointing and providing for the compensation of an independent registered public accounting firm to conduct an annual audit of our financial statements, overseeing the work and evaluating the performance of the independent auditor, reviewing and evaluating our accounting principles and practices, approving all professional services to be provided to us by our independent registered public accounting firm, reviewing and overseeing any related party transactions, and overseeing implementation and enforcement of our insider trading policy. The audit committee is governed by a written charter approved by our board of directors.

Compensation Committee. The compensation committee currently consists of Dr. Goldberg (chair) and Mr. Lief. During 2009, until October 2009, Dr. Denner served as a member of the compensation committee. Our board of directors has determined that each member of the compensation committee is an independent director under Section 803A(2) of the NYSE Amex LLC Company Guide. The compensation committee reviews, approves and administers all compensation arrangements for executives, administers our equity-based compensation plans, and establishes and reviews general policies relating to the compensation and benefits of our executives and other

personnel. The compensation committee has authority to select, engage, compensate and terminate independent compensation consultants, legal counsel and such other advisors as it deems necessary and advisable to assist it in carrying out its responsibilities and functions. The compensation committee is governed by a written charter approved by our board of directors.

8

Table of Contents

Nominating and Governance Committee. The nominating and governance committee currently consists of Dr. Pykett (chair) and Dr. Rowinsky, each of whom our board of directors has determined is an independent director under Section 803A(2) of the NYSE Amex LLC Company Guide. The nominating and governance committee s responsibilities include identifying, evaluating and recommending to our board of directors nominees for possible election to our board of directors and providing oversight with respect to corporate governance and succession planning matters. The nominating and governance committee is governed by a written charter approved by our board of directors.

Charters for the audit committee, the compensation committee and the nominating and governance committee, as well as our corporate governance guidelines, are posted on our corporate website at: www.adventrx.com.

Procedures for Determining Executive and Director Compensation

The compensation committee was formed to, among other things, assist our board of directors in the discharge of its responsibilities with respect to compensation of our executive officers and non-employee directors. In accordance with its charter, the compensation committee has authority to determine the amount and form of compensation paid to our chief executive officer, and to take such action, and to direct us to take such action, as is necessary and advisable to compensate our chief executive officer in a manner consistent with its determinations, and shall deliberate and vote on all such actions outside the presence of our chief executive officer. The compensation committee is responsible for reviewing, at least annually, the performance of our chief executive officer, including in light of any goals and objectives established for such performance, and, in light of such review, determining his or her compensation.

In accordance with its charter, the compensation committee also has authority to determine the amount and form of compensation paid to our other executive officers, employees, consultants and advisors and to review the performance of such persons in order to determine appropriate compensation. The compensation committee has authority to take such action, and to direct us to take such action, as is necessary and advisable to compensate such persons and to implement such policies and practices in a manner consistent with its determinations.

Except with respect to its responsibilities regarding setting compensation for our chief executive officer and our other executive officers, the compensation committee may delegate its authority to individual members of the compensation committee or other members of our board of directors. In addition, to the extent permitted by applicable law and regulations, the compensation committee may delegate to one or more of our officers (or other appropriate supervisory personnel) the authority to grant stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock units and performance units to our employees (who are not officers or members of our board of directors), including employees of any subsidiary of the Company; provided, however that (a) the number of shares of our common stock underlying such options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock units and performance units are consistent with guidelines previously approved by the compensation committee; (b) the per-share exercise or purchase price of such awards equals the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant; and (c) the vesting and other terms that apply to such awards are the same terms as apply under our standard form of agreement under the applicable equity compensation plan, provided that such officer(s) may, in such officer(s) discretion, grant awards that are fully vested on the date of grant of the award or grant awards with more restrictive vesting requirements.

Historically, prior to 2009, our chief executive officer would review and assess the performance of the other executive officers for the preceding year in the first quarter of each year and subsequently make recommendations to the compensation committee regarding the amount and form of compensation packages for those officers for the current year. During 2008 and 2009, we experienced substantial turn-over in our executive and management ranks, and did not have a chief executive officer or president from October 2008 until February 2010. With respect to executive officer compensation for 2009, in December 2008 and the first quarter of 2009, the compensation committee reviewed and assessed our financial condition and priorities and, taking into consideration our then primary focus on evaluating

strategic options, including the sale or exclusive license of one or more of our product candidate programs, a strategic business merger and other similar transactions, and input from our then remaining executive officers, approved certain severance benefits and equity incentive awards. In the third quarter of 2009, after we had raised additional funds to continue our operations and we had only two remaining employees, both of whom were executive officers, the compensation committee re-evaluated the compensation of those executive

9

Table of Contents

officers, with input from the executive officers, and set new 2009 compensation packages for the executive officers. For 2010, the compensation committee met in the first quarter of the year to review and assess the 2009 performance of our two executive officers and to determine their 2009 non-equity incentive plan awards and compensation for 2010. The executive officers presented the compensation committee with an assessment of their performance and a proposal for their compensation packages, which the compensation committee considered in making its determinations. The executive officers were not present during the compensation committee s determination of their 2009 or 2010 compensation.

With respect to non-employee director compensation, the compensation committee reviews such compensation practices and policies at least annually and makes a recommendation to our board of directors as to the amount and form of non-employee director compensation. Our board of directors, taking the compensation committee s recommendation into consideration, sets the form and amount of non-employee director compensation.

In 2007, the compensation committee retained Frederic W. Cook & Co., Inc., a nationally-recognized compensation consulting firm, to provide an independent evaluation of our compensation practices and programs. The compensation committee did not engage F.W. Cook in 2009. However, in light of F.W. Cook s familiarity with our company and industry, our executive officers contacted F.W. Cook with certain specific questions to assist them in providing input to the compensation committee regarding executive compensation matters. Neither F.W. Cook nor any of its affiliates provided any services to us in 2009 apart from the above-described advice regarding executive compensation matters.

Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight

The leadership structure of our board of directors is such that the chair of our board of directors and chief executive officer positions are separated. Mr. Lief, an independent director, has served as chair of our board of directors since May 2007. We believe having an independent chair of our board of directors with extensive executive experience in the life sciences industry during a period in which the Company experienced substantial turn-over in management has provided our board of directors with consistent, experienced and independent leadership that enhanced the effectiveness of our board of directors as a whole. Our corporate governance guidelines do not require our board of directors to choose an independent chair or to separate the roles of chair and chief executive officer, but our board of directors believes this leadership structure is the appropriate structure for the Company at this time. Pursuant to our corporate governance guidelines, our board of directors may choose its chair in any manner that it deems to be in the best interests of the Company. If, in the future, the chair of our board of directors is not an independent director, our board of directors may designate an independent director to serve as a lead independent director.

Our board of directors is responsible for oversight of risks facing the Company, while our management is responsible for day-to-day management of risk. Our board of directors, as a whole, directly administers its risk oversight function. In addition, the risk oversight function is also administered through the standing committees of our board of directors, which oversee risks inherent in their respective areas of responsibility, reporting to our board of directors regularly and involving our board of directors as necessary. For example, the audit committee oversees our financial exposure and financial reporting related risks, and the compensation committee oversees risks related to our compensation programs and practices. Our board of directors as a whole directly oversees our strategic and business risk, including product development risk, through regular interactions with our management and, from time-to-time, input from independent advisors. We believe our board s leadership structure supports its role in risk oversight, with our chief executive officer and our president and chief operating officer responsible for assessing and managing risks facing the Company on a day-to-day basis and the chair and other members of our board of directors providing oversight of such risk management.

10

DIRECTOR NOMINATIONS

Criteria for Board Membership

In selecting candidates for appointment or election to our board of directors, the nominating and governance committee considers the appropriate balance of experience, skills and characteristics required of our board of directors, and seeks to insure that at least a majority of the directors are independent under the rules of the NYSE Amex, that members of the audit committee meet the financial literacy and sophistication requirements under the rules of the NYSE Amex and that at least one of member of the audit committee qualifies as an audit committee financial expert under the rules of the SEC. Nominees for director are selected on the basis of their depth and breadth of experience, wisdom, integrity, ability to make independent analytical inquiries, understanding of our company s business environment, willingness to devote adequate time to board duties, the interplay of the nominee s experience and skills with those of other directors and the extent to which the nominee would be a desirable addition to our board of directors and any of its committees. Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria for director nominees, although the nominating and governance committee may also consider such other factors as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and our stockholders. The nominating and governance committee does not have a policy regarding board diversity, but it takes diversity of professional experience and perspective within the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries into account in identifying and selecting director nominees.

Stockholder Recommendations

Other than under the Rights Agreement, we have never received a proposal from a stockholder to nominate a director. The nominating and governance committee will consider qualified candidates for director suggested by stockholders by applying the criteria for board membership described above. Stockholders wishing to suggest a qualified director candidate for review and consideration by the nominating and governance committee must provide a written statement to our corporate secretary that includes the following information: a statement that the proposing stockholder is a stockholder of the Company and is proposing a candidate for consideration by the nominating and governance committee; the name, age, business address and residence address of the proposed nominee; a statement of the proposed nominee s business and educational experience; the proposed nominee s principal occupation or employment; the class and number of shares of our capital stock beneficially owned by the proposed nominee; a detailed description of all relationships, arrangements or understandings between the proposing stockholder and the proposed nominee and any other person or persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to which such proposed nomination is being made by the stockholder; a detailed description of all relationships, arrangements or understandings between the proposed nominee and any service-providers, suppliers or competitors of the Company; information regarding each of the criteria for board membership described above in sufficient detail to allow the nominating and governance committee to evaluate the proposed nominee; and a statement from the proposed nominee that he or she is willing to be considered and willing to serve as a director if nominated and elected. The proposing stockholder must also include the following information with respect to such stockholder: the proposing stockholder s name and address, as they appear on the Company s books, and the class and number of shares of our capital stock beneficially owned by the proposing stockholder. If a stockholder submits a director recommendation in compliance with the procedure described above, the nominating and governance committee will conduct an initial evaluation of the proposed nominee and, if it determines the proposed nominee may be qualified, the nominating and governance committee and one or more members of our management team will interview the proposed nominee to determine whether he or she might be suitable to be a director. If the nominating and governance committee determines the proposed nominee would be a valuable addition to our board of directors, based on the criteria for board membership described above and our board of directors specific needs at the time, it will recommend to our board of directors such person s nomination.

Separately, our bylaws contain provisions that address the process by which a stockholder may nominate an individual to stand for election to our board of directors at our annual meeting of stockholders. Such nominations may be made only if the stockholder has given timely written notice to our corporate secretary containing the information required by our bylaws. To be timely, such notice must be received at our principal executive offices not earlier than the 120th day, nor later than the close of business on the 90th day, prior to the first anniversary of the date

11

Table of Contents

of the preceding year s annual meeting as first specified in our notice of meeting (without regard to any postponements or adjournments of such meeting after such notice was first sent), except that if no annual meeting was held in the previous year or the date of the annual meeting is more than 30 days earlier or later than such anniversary date, such notice must be received not earlier than the 120th day prior to the date of such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the 90th day prior to the date of such annual meeting or the 10th day following the date on which we first publicly announce the date of such meeting.

Process for Identifying and Evaluating Nominees

Each year before recommending to the board a slate of nominees for director, the nominating and governance committee will consider each incumbent director s performance on our board of directors and willingness to continue in service. In the ordinary course, absent special circumstances or a material change in the criteria for board membership, the nominating and governance committee will recommend for nomination incumbent directors with skills and experience that are relevant to our business and who are willing to continue in service. If an incumbent director is not willing to stand for re-election, or if a vacancy on our board of directors occurs between annual stockholder meetings and our board of directors determines to fill such vacancy, the nominating and governance committee will identify the desired skills and experience of a new nominee based on the criteria for board membership described above and any specific needs of our board of directors at the time. The nominating and governance committee will then seek suggestions from other members of our board of directors and our senior management as to individuals meeting such criteria. Potential nominees will be selected based on input from members of our board of directors, our senior management and, if the nominating and governance committee deems appropriate, a third-party search firm. The nominating and governance committee will evaluate each potential nominee s qualifications and check relevant references; in addition, such individuals will be interviewed by at least one member of the nominating and governance committee. Following this process, the nominating and governance committee will determine whether to recommend to our board of directors that a potential nominee be presented as a nominee for election by the stockholders or be appointed to fill a vacancy on our board of directors, as the case may be. Historically, our board of directors nominates for election at our annual stockholder meetings the individuals recommended by the nominating and governance committee.

Director Arrangements

Under the terms of the Rights Agreement, we are required to cause our board of directors to nominate for election to our board of directors an individual, who we refer to as the Purchaser Designee, selected by the Purchasers who at the time own a majority of the Purchased Shares. Odysseas D. Kostas is the current Purchaser Designee. Purchasers, as defined in the Rights Agreement, refers to those entities, including entities affiliated with Carl C. Icahn, that purchased our common stock and warrants in a private transaction in July 2005. Purchased Shares, as defined in the Rights Agreement, refers to those shares of common stock outstanding and issuable upon exercise of warrants issued to the Purchasers in connection with the July 2005 transaction. The Purchasers right to select a Purchaser Designee for nomination to our board of directors terminates upon the earlier of (i) July 27, 2012, (ii) the date that the Purchasers aggregate holdings of Purchased Shares (either of record or beneficially) is, as a result of sales or other dispositions thereof, equal to less than 50% of the aggregate number of shares purchased by the Purchasers in connection with the July 2005 transaction, and (iii) upon a change of control of the Company.

Under the terms of a Third Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated August 26, 2009, the Rights Agreement was amended such that we agreed to set the authorized number of directors constituting our board of directors at six; provided, however, that in the event a director resigns from our board of directors and any resulting vacancy is not filled by a majority of the directors then in office, which majority shall include the Purchaser Designee, if there is then a Purchaser Designee, our board of directors may decrease the authorized number of directors to the number of directors then in office (including for this purpose the appointment of a director to fill any vacancy resulting from such

resignation); provided, further, that, from time to time, our board of directors may increase the number of authorized directors provided that any vacancy created by such an increase is filled by a majority of our board of directors then in office, which majority shall include the Purchaser Designee, if there is then a Purchaser Designee. Currently, and in accordance with the Rights Agreement, as amended, the number of authorized directors constituting our board of directors is five.

12

COMMUNICATIONS WITH DIRECTORS

Stockholders who wish to communicate with our directors to report complaints or concerns related to accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing may do so using the audit committee s procedures for the receipt of such communications. These procedures allow submitting the complaint or concern telephonically as set forth in our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which is available on our corporate website at www.adventrx.com.

If any stockholder wishes to address questions regarding the business affairs of the Company directly to our board of directors, or any individual director, the stockholder must submit the inquiry in writing to: ADVENTRX Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Attn: Investor Relations, 6725 Mesa Ridge Road, Suite 100, San Diego, California 92121. Submitting stockholders should indicate they are a stockholder of the Company. Depending on the subject matter, investor relations will: forward the inquiry to the chair of our board of directors, who may forward the inquiry to a particular director if the inquiry is directed towards a particular director; forward the inquiry to the appropriate personnel within the Company (for instance, if it is primarily commercial in nature); attempt to handle the inquiry directly (for instance, if it is a request for information about the Company or a stock-related matter); or not forward the inquiry, if it relates to an improper or inappropriate topic or is otherwise irrelevant.

We encourage all of our directors to attend our annual meetings of stockholders. Mr. Lief attended our 2009 annual meeting of stockholders.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our executive officers, their ages and positions held as of May 17, 2010, are as follows:

Name	Age	Position
Brian M. Culley	39	Chief Executive Officer
Patrick L. Keran	38	President and Chief Operating Officer

Biographical Information of Executive Officers

Brian M. Culley, M.A., M.B.A. Mr. Culley joined our company in December 2004 and currently serves as our chief executive officer, a position he has held since February 2010. He has served as our principal executive officer since February 2009. From January 2007 to February 2010, he served as our chief business officer and senior vice president. From February 2006 to January 2007, Mr. Culley served as our senior vice president, business development, and, from December 2004 to February 2006, he served as our vice president, business development. From 2002 until 2004, Mr. Culley managed all strategic collaborations and licensing agreements for iTherx, Inc. (formerly, Immusol, Inc.) in San Diego, where his most recent title was director of business development and marketing. From 1999 until 2000, he was a licensing and marketing associate at the University of California, San Diego, department of technology transfer & intellectual property services and from 1996 to 1999, he was a research associate for Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc., where he performed drug discovery research. Mr. Culley has over 15 years of experience in the biotechnology industry, including deal structure and negotiation, licensing, due diligence, market and competitive research, and venture funding. He received a B.S. in biology from Boston College, a masters in biochemistry from the University of California, Santa Barbara and an M.B.A. from The Johnson School of Business at Cornell University with an emphasis on private equity and entrepreneurship.

Patrick L. Keran, J.D. Mr. Keran joined our company in August 2006 and currently serves as our president and chief operating officer, a position he has held since February 2010. He has also served as our principal financial and accounting officer since July 2009 and as our secretary since September 2006. From August 2006 to February 2010, Mr. Keran served as our general counsel and, from January 2007 to February 2010, he served as our vice president, legal. From April 2004 to August 2006, Mr. Keran was associate general counsel at Isis Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a publicly held drug discovery and development company. From February 2003 to April 2004, Mr. Keran practiced corporate law at the law firm of Heller Ehrman LLP, specializing in public and private financings, licensing arrangements, mergers and acquisitions and corporate governance matters. From September 1999 to February 2003, Mr. Keran practiced law at the law firm of Brobeck Phleger & Harrison LLP where he had a similar corporate practice. Mr. Keran is licensed to practice law in the State of California. Mr. Keran received a B.A. from the University of California at San Diego and a J.D. from the University of California at Berkeley, Boalt Hall School of Law.

13

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock as of May 17, 2010 (the Evaluation Date), or an earlier date for information based on filings with the SEC, by (a) each person known to us to beneficially own more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock, (b) each director and nominee for director, (c) each of the named executive officers listed in the compensation tables included in this proxy statement and (d) all of our directors and executive officers as a group. The information in this table is based solely on statements in filings with the SEC or other reliable information. As of the Evaluation Date, 14,296,085 shares of our common stock were outstanding. The information in this table reflects the 1-for-25 reverse split of our outstanding common stock effected on April 23, 2010 and the proportionate adjustments made to outstanding warrants and options to purchase our common stock.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner(1)(2)	Beneficial Ownership(3)	Percent of Class
Michael M. Goldberg(4)	13,595	*
Odysseas D. Kostas(5)	1,888	*
Jack Lief(6)	10,555	*
Mark J. Pykett(7)	12,875	*
Eric K. Rowinsky(8)	8,555	*
Brian M. Culley(9)	32,648	*
Patrick L. Keran(10)	25,865	*
Michele L. Yelmene		*
All directors and executive officers as a group (7 persons)(11)	105,981	*

- * Less than 1%
- (1) Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each of the listed persons is c/o ADVENTRX Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 6725 Mesa Ridge Road, Suite 100, San Diego, California 92121.
- (2) We do not know of any person or group of persons that holds 5% or more of our common stock as of the Evaluation Date.
- (3) Beneficial ownership of shares is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes any shares over which a person exercises sole or shared voting or investment power, or of which a person has the right to acquire ownership within 60 days of the Evaluation Date. Except as otherwise noted, (a) each person or entity has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares shown and (b) none of the shares shown as beneficially owned on this table are subject to pledge. In calculating the percentage ownership of each person identified in the table, shares underlying options, warrants or other rights to acquire shares of our common stock held by that person that are either currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the Evaluation Date are deemed outstanding. These shares, however, are not deemed outstanding for the purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other individual or entity. Percentage ownership for each person is based on the number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of the Evaluation Date, together with the applicable number of shares of common stock subject to options, warrants or other rights to acquire shares of our common stock currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the Evaluation Date for that person or group of

persons.

- (4) Consists of (a) 12,555 shares of common stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the Evaluation Date and (b) 1,040 shares of common stock held directly by Dr. Goldberg.
- (5) Consists of 1,888 shares of common stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the Evaluation Date.
- (6) Consists of 10,555 shares of common stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the Evaluation Date.
- (7) Consists of (a) 12,555 shares of common stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the Evaluation Date and (b) 320 shares of common stock held by Dr. Pykett and his spouse, as joint tenants.

14

Table of Contents

- (8) Consists of 8,555 shares of common stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the Evaluation Date.
- (9) Consists of 32,648 shares of common stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the Evaluation Date.
- (10) Consists of 25,865 shares of common stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the Evaluation Date.
- (11) Includes 104,621 shares of common stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the Evaluation Date

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

We have incorporated into our written review and approval policies certain procedures designed to ensure that any proposed transaction in which we would be a participant and in which any of our directors, executive officers, holders of more than 5% of our common stock, or any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing, would have a direct or indirect material interest is reviewed by individuals within the Company familiar with the requirements of Item 404 of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC. If any such proposed transaction would require disclosure pursuant to Item 404(a), it will be presented to the audit committee for review and, if appropriate, approval.

Other than the following transactions and the transactions described under Executive Officer Compensation and Director Compensation below, since January 1, 2008, there has not been, nor currently are there proposed, any transactions or series of similar transactions in which our company was or is to be a participant and the amount involved exceeds or will exceed 1% of the average of our total assets at December 31, 2008 and 2009, which is approximately \$98,682, and in which any of our directors, executive officers, holders of more than 5% of our common stock or any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest. All share and per share information included below reflects retrospective application of the 1-for-25 reverse split of our outstanding common stock effected on April 23, 2010.

Consulting Services Agreement with Talaris Advisors LLC

As of February 1, 2010, we entered into a service agreement with Talaris Advisors LLC, a privately held integrated drug development advisory firm, pursuant to which Talaris will assist us in planning for and conducting a meeting with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration to discuss the data from our bioequivalence study of ANX-514 and will provide strategic guidance regarding regulatory strategy for ANX-514 based upon the outcome of the meeting. The agreement has a four-month term, but may be extended by mutual agreement between us and Talaris. Pursuant to the agreement, we will pay Talaris a total of \$110,000 for its services and reimburse it for reasonable and necessary direct expenses of up to \$9,000 incurred in connection with the performance of its services to us. Mark J. Pykett, a member of our board of directors, is the chief executive officer and a member of Talaris. The dollar value of his interest in these transactions between us and Talaris will not exceed the total value of such transactions as described above.

Separation Arrangements with Former Chief Executive Officer and President

Evan M. Levine was employed by us from October 2002 to October 2008, and he most recently served as our chief executive officer and president. Mr. Levine also served as a member of our board of directors from October 2002 to December 2008. In December 2008, we entered into a Confidential Separation Agreement and General Release of All Claims with Mr. Levine, which we refer to herein as the Levine Separation Agreement, regarding the terms of his

employment separation.

As set forth in the Levine Separation Agreement, in exchange for a mutual release of claims and Mr. Levine s agreement and representations (as more fully described below), we agreed to provide a severance payment of \$225,000 to Mr. Levine. In addition, we agreed to provide a health benefit allowance of \$19,870, which Mr. Levine could use, at his discretion, to pay the premiums required to continue his group health care coverage under COBRA or any other health care related expenses. The severance payment and the health benefit allowance were paid in one

15

Table of Contents

lump sum, less applicable payroll deductions and required withholdings, in January 2009. In addition, pursuant to the Levine Separation Agreement, we agreed to issue 40,000 fully-vested shares of our common stock to Mr. Levine, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions by January 30, 2009, or, if those conditions were not so satisfied, pay Mr. Levine an additional \$100,000 in one lump sum, less applicable payroll deductions and required withholdings. In February 2009, because the conditions to our obligation to issue the shares had not been timely satisfied, we paid Mr. Levine an additional \$100,000 in one lump sum, less applicable payroll deductions and required withholdings. In November 2008, prior to entering into the Levine Separation Agreement, we paid Mr. Levine a total of \$40,000 in four weekly installments ending in December 2008 in exchange for his agreement not to sign a Confidential Separation Agreement and General Release of All Claims that was presented to him on October 19, 2008 to allow time for discussions related to the terms of Mr. Levine s employment separation and release of claims to continue.

Under the Levine Separation Agreement, Mr. Levine represented that he had returned to us all property, data and information belonging to us, agreed not to use or disclose to others any confidential or proprietary information of ours and agreed to comply with his continuing obligations under various agreements and other documents as previously executed by him. In addition, we and Mr. Levine each agreed that neither will make any voluntary statements, written or oral, or cause or encourage others to make any such statements, that defame, disparage or in any way criticize the personal and/or business reputation, practices or conduct of, respectively, Mr. Levine, on the one hand, or our company or our employees, officers and directors, among others, on the other hand. Each of us and Mr. Levine also represented that neither had filed any lawsuits, complaints or other accusatory pleadings against the other.

Separation and Consulting Services Arrangements with Former Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President

Gregory P. Hanson was employed by us from December 2006 to April 2008 as our chief financial officer and senior vice president. In April 2008, we entered into a letter agreement with Mr. Hanson, which we refer to herein as the Hanson Separation Agreement, regarding the terms of his employment separation.

As set forth in the Hanson Separation Agreement, in exchange for a mutual release of claims and Mr. Hanson s agreement and representations (as more fully described below), we paid Mr. Hanson an aggregate of \$125,000, which was equal to six months of Mr. Hanson base salary in effect at the time of termination, less applicable payroll deductions and required withholdings, in substantially equal installments beginning in April 2008, in accordance with our standard payroll practices over 13 pay periods. In addition, we paid Mr. Hanson \$20,997, less applicable payroll deductions and required withholdings, which we and Mr. Hanson agreed satisfied in full our obligation under our offer letter agreement with Mr. Hanson to pay all costs that we would otherwise have incurred to maintain Mr. Hanson s health, welfare and retirement benefits if Mr. Hanson had continued for six continuous months after Mr. Hanson s termination date. We paid the \$20,997 amount in substantially equal installments commencing on and continuing in accordance with the same schedule described above with respect to payment of Mr. Hanson s severance amount. Furthermore, we accelerated the vesting and extended the time to exercise vested shares under the stock option granted to Mr. Hanson in December 2006 in connection with the commencement of his employment. Under this option, Mr. Hanson was granted the right to purchase up to 10,000 shares of our common stock at a price of \$64.25 per share, which right was subject to a vesting schedule. As of Mr. Hanson s termination date, this option was vested as to 3,125 shares and unvested as to 6,875 shares. Pursuant to the Hanson Separation Agreement, we accelerated vesting as to 1,250 of the unvested shares, which resulted in this option being vested as to a total of 4,375 shares, and extended the time for Mr. Hanson to exercise the vested shares under this option through September 29, 2008. Mr. Hanson did not exercise the option by September 29, 2008 and, accordingly, it terminated on that date. The closing market price of our common stock on September 29, 2008 was \$4.50 per share, while the exercise price of the option was \$64.25 per share.

Under the Hanson Separation Agreement, Mr. Hanson represented that he had returned to us all of our property and data that had been in his possession or control and acknowledged that he will continue to be bound by an agreement with us regarding the use and confidentiality of our confidential information and, in particular, that he will hold all of our confidential information in confidence and not directly or indirectly use any aspect of such confidential information. Mr. Hanson also agreed not to make any voluntary statements, written or oral, or cause or

16

Table of Contents

encourage others to make any such statements that defame or disparage our company and, among others, our officers and directors.

In addition, in April 2008, we and Mr. Hanson entered into a consulting agreement and related confidential information and invention assignment agreement. Under the consulting agreement, Mr. Hanson agreed to provide consulting services on an as-needed basis and we agreed to pay Mr. Hanson (a) for the first ten hours in a particular calendar month, \$250 per hour and (b) for any time beyond ten hours in a particular calendar month, \$150 per hour. Either party could terminate the consulting agreement upon written notice, except that Mr. Hanson could not terminate the consulting agreement, other than for our failure to pay Mr. Hanson as set forth in the consulting agreement, prior to December 31, 2008. In 2008, consulting fees to Mr. Hanson under our consulting agreement totaled \$375. In 2009, Mr. Hanson did not provide any consulting services to us and we did not pay any amounts to him under the consulting agreement.

Separation Arrangements with Former Chief Scientific Officer and Senior Vice President

Joan M. Robbins was employed by us from March 2003 to October 2008, and she most recently served as our chief scientific officer and senior vice president. In October 2008, we entered into a Confidential Separation Agreement and General Release of All Claims, which we refer to herein as the Robbins Separation Agreement, regarding the terms of her employment separation.

As set forth in the Robbins Separation Agreement, in exchange for a release of claims and Dr. Robbins agreement to provide certain transition assistance and Dr. Robbins other agreements and representations (as more fully described below), we agreed to provide a severance payment of \$123,615 to Dr. Robbins. In addition, we agreed to provide a health benefit allowance of \$8,309, which Dr. Robbins could use, at her discretion, to pay the premiums required to continue her group health care coverage under COBRA or any other health care related expenses. We agreed to pay the severance payment and the health benefit allowance in 11 substantially equal installments over a period of five and one-half months, less applicable payroll deductions and required withholdings, beginning in December 2008, conditioned upon Dr. Robbins making herself available as needed during that period to answer business-related questions by telephone or in person as deemed reasonably necessary by us.

Under the Robbins Separation Agreement, Dr. Robbins represented that she had returned to us all property, data and information belonging to us and agreed not to use or disclose to others any of our confidential or proprietary information and agreed to comply with her continuing obligations under various agreements and other documents as previously executed by her. In addition, she agreed to make herself available, as needed, without any additional compensation, to answer business-related questions by telephone or in person as deemed reasonably necessary by us and that she would not make any voluntary statements, written or oral, or cause or encourage others to make any such statements, that defame, disparage or in any way criticize the personal and/or business reputation, practices or conduct of our company or our employees, officers and directors, among others. Dr. Robbins also represented that she had not filed any lawsuits, complaints or other accusatory pleadings against us.

Separation Arrangements with Former President and Chief Medical Officer

Dr. James Merritt was employed by us from September 2006 to January 2008 as our president and chief medical officer. In February 2008, we entered into a letter agreement with Dr. Merritt, which we refer to herein as the Merritt Separation Agreement, regarding the terms of his employment separation.

As set forth in the Merritt Separation Agreement, in exchange for a mutual release, beginning in February 2008, we paid Dr. Merritt an aggregate of \$181,250, which was equal to six months of Dr. Merritt s base salary in effect at the time of termination, less applicable state and federal payroll deductions, in substantially equal installments in

accordance with our standard payroll practices over 13 pay periods. In addition, we paid Dr. Merritt \$16,038, less applicable state and federal payroll deductions, which we and Dr. Merritt agreed satisfied in full our obligation under our offer letter agreement with Dr. Merritt to pay all costs that we would otherwise have incurred to maintain Dr. Merritt s health, welfare and retirement benefits if Dr. Merritt s employment had continued for six continuous months after Dr. Merritt s termination date. We paid the \$16,038 amount in substantially equal installments commencing on and continuing in accordance with the same schedule described above with respect to payment of Dr. Merritt s severance amount. Furthermore, we accelerated the vesting and extended the time to

17

Table of Contents

exercise vested shares under the stock option granted to Dr. Merritt in September 2006 in connection with the commencement of his employment. Under this option, Dr. Merritt was granted the right to purchase up to 12,000 shares of our common stock at a price of \$71.50 per share, which right was subject to a vesting schedule. As of Dr. Merritt s termination date, this option was vested as to 4,000 shares and unvested as to 8,000 shares. Pursuant to the Merritt Separation Agreement, we accelerated vesting as to 1,249 of the unvested shares, which resulted in this option being vested as to a total of 5,249 shares, and extended the time for Dr. Merritt to exercise the vested shares under this option to noon (Pacific time) on December 31, 2008. Dr. Merritt did not exercise the option by the December 31, 2008 deadline and, accordingly, it terminated. The closing market price of our common stock on December 31, 2008 was \$2.00 per share, while the exercise price of the option was \$71.50 per share. In addition, as of his termination date, Dr. Merritt held another option that was vested as to 333 shares. Pursuant to its terms, this option expired, unexercised, on April 28, 2008.

Under the Merritt Separation Agreement, Dr. Merritt represented that he had returned to us all of our property and data that had been in his possession or control and acknowledged that he is bound by an agreement with us regarding the use and confidentiality of our confidential information.

Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our bylaws provide that we will indemnify each of our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law. Further, we have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and officers, and we have purchased a policy of directors and officers liability insurance that insures our directors and officers against the cost of defense, settlement or payment of a judgment under certain circumstances.

18

EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information concerning compensation earned for services rendered to us during the years ended December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 by (i) each individual serving as principal executive officer during 2009, (ii) the two most highly compensated executive officers, other than the individuals serving as our principal executive officer, who were serving as executive officers as of December 31, 2009, and (iii) the individuals who would have qualified under the foregoing clause (ii) but for the fact that such individuals were not serving as executive officers as of December 31, 2009. Collectively, these individuals are referred to as the named executive officers. All share and per share information included below reflects retrospective application of the 1-for-25 reverse split of our outstanding common stock effected on April 23, 2010.

				Sum	mary Comp	pens	ation Tab	ole		
							- '		d	
					Option Awards		Plan	Deferred		ı
Year	Salary	Bonus	((1)	(2)		(3)	Earnings	(4)	Total
2009	\$ 316,817		\$	0	\$ 215,900	\$	225,000		\$ 962(5)	\$ 758,679
2008	\$ 262,500				\$ 102,160				\$ 14,398	\$ 379,058
2009	\$ 290,781		\$	0	\$ 215,900	\$	225,000		\$ 6,154	\$ 737,833
2008	\$ 231,000				\$ 102,160				\$ 14,233	\$ 347,393
2009	\$ 102,834		\$	0					\$ 94,829(7)	\$ 197,663
2008	n/a	n/a		n/a	n/a		n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
	2009 2008 2009 2008 2009	2009 \$ 316,817 2008 \$ 262,500 2009 \$ 290,781 2008 \$ 231,000 2009 \$ 102,834	2009 \$ 316,817 2008 \$ 262,500 2009 \$ 290,781 2008 \$ 231,000 2009 \$ 102,834	Year Salary Bonus (2009 \$ 316,817 \$ 2008 \$ 262,500 2009 \$ 290,781 \$ 2008 \$ 231,000 2009 \$ 102,834 \$	Year Salary Bonus Stock Awards (1) 2009 \$ 316,817 \$ 0 2008 \$ 262,500 \$ 0 2009 \$ 290,781 \$ 0 2008 \$ 231,000 \$ 0 2009 \$ 102,834 \$ 0	Year Salary Bonus Stock Awards (1) Option Awards (2) 2009 \$ 316,817 \$ 0 \$ 215,900 2008 \$ 262,500 \$ 102,160 2009 \$ 290,781 \$ 0 \$ 215,900 2008 \$ 231,000 \$ 102,160 2009 \$ 102,834 \$ 0	Year Salary Bonus (1) Option Awards (2) 2009 \$ 316,817 \$ 0 \$ 215,900 \$ 102,160 2008 \$ 262,500 \$ 102,160 \$ 2009 \$ 215,900 \$ 102,160 2008 \$ 231,000 \$ 102,160 \$ 102,160 \$ 102,160 2009 \$ 102,834 \$ 0 \$ 102,160 \$ 102,160	Year Salary Bonus (1) Stock (2) Option Awards (2) Non-Equify Incentive Plan Compensation (3) 2009 \$ 316,817 \$ 0 \$ 215,900 \$ 225,000 2008 \$ 262,500 \$ 102,160 \$ 225,000 2009 \$ 290,781 \$ 0 \$ 215,900 \$ 225,000 2008 \$ 231,000 \$ 102,160 \$ 102,160 2009 \$ 102,834 \$ 0 \$ 102,160	Year Salary Bonus (1) Compensation (2) Incentive Plan Deferred Compensation (3) Earnings 2009 \$ 316,817 \$ 0 \$ 215,900 \$ 225,000 2008 \$ 262,500 \$ 102,160 2009 \$ 290,781 \$ 0 \$ 215,900 \$ 225,000 2008 \$ 231,000 \$ 102,160 2009 \$ 102,834 \$ 0	Non-Equityonqualified Incentive Stock Option Plan Deferred All Other Awards Compensation Co

(1) The amounts in this column represent the grant date fair value of a restricted stock unit award granted to each of the named executive officers on January 30, 2009, calculated in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 718. Mr. Culley received 48,000 restricted stock units, Mr. Keran received 34,000 restricted stock units and Ms. Yelmene received 18,000 restricted stock units. Vesting and settlement of the restricted stock unit awards were conditioned upon our consummation of a strategic transaction. The grant date fair value of zero for each of these awards is based on our assessment that achievement of the vesting condition was not probable (assessed as of the grant date). Assuming 100% probability of meeting the vesting condition, the value of the restricted stock unit awards as of the grant date would have been \$108,000 for Mr. Culley, \$76,500 for Mr. Keran, and \$40,500 for Ms. Yelmene. The restricted stock unit awards granted to Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran were forfeited by them and cancelled in July 2009 and the restricted stock unit award granted to Ms. Yelmene was also cancelled in July 2009 in connection with the termination of her employment. As a result of these cancellations, the officers have not and will not receive any compensation or pecuniary value from these restricted stock unit awards.

(2)

The amounts in this column represent the aggregate grant date fair value of option awards granted to the named executive officers in 2009 and 2008, respectively, calculated in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 718. For a description of the assumptions used to calculate the grant date fair value of the option awards granted in 2009, see Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009. For a description of the assumptions used to calculate the grant date fair value of the option awards granted in 2008, see Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

- (3) We paid the amounts set forth in this column pursuant to the terms of our 2009 mid-year incentive plan. See Narrative to Summary Compensation Table Short-term Non-equity Incentive Plan and Employment Retention and Severance Arrangements below for a description of the material terms of our 2009 mid-year incentive plan.
- (4) Except as otherwise indicated, the amounts in this column consist of (a) matching contributions made pursuant to our tax-qualified 401(k) plan and (b) premiums paid for life insurance policies for the benefit of our executives.
- (5) Consists only of the premiums paid for life insurance policies for the benefit of Mr. Culley.

19

Table of Contents

- (6) Ms. Yelmene s employment with us ended on July 1, 2009. She has served as a consultant to us since her employment ended pursuant to a consulting agreement, the material terms of which are described below under Narrative to Summary Compensation Table Consulting Arrangements with Michele Yelmene. Compensation information for Ms. Yelmene for 2008 is not included because she was not a 2008 named executive officer.
- (7) Consists of (a) matching contributions pursuant to our 401(k) plan of \$4,746, (b) life insurance premiums of \$238, (c) accrued vacation benefits paid in connection with termination of employment of \$30,220, and (d) consulting fees earned of \$59,625.

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

Base Salary

In July 2009, the compensation committee of our board of directors increased the annual base salaries of Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran to \$315,000 and \$289,000, respectively, which adjustments were retroactive to January 1, 2009.

Short-term Non-equity Incentive Plan and Employment Retention and Severance Arrangements

Each of Mr. Culley s and Mr. Keran s employment with us is at-will and they may terminate their employment with us at any time with or without prior notice. In July 2009, the compensation committee of our board of directors adopted both a 2009 mid-year incentive plan and a retention and severance plan applicable to Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran. We determined that these plans were necessary to incentivize and retain Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran, who at the time were our only employees, and reinforce their dedication to us during a period when they would otherwise likely seek alternative employment. As a part of adopting these plans, we terminated the retention and incentive agreements that we had entered into with each of Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran in January 2009 and the awards of restricted stock units, representing the right to receive 48,000 and 34,000 shares, respectively, of our common stock, that we granted to Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran in January 2009. We did not pay any amounts to either Mr. Culley or Mr. Keran pursuant to the January 2009 retention and incentive agreements before those agreements were terminated.

2009 Mid-Year Incentive Plan. Under our 2009 mid-year incentive plan, each of Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran were eligible for cash incentive awards based 100% on our achievement of corporate performance objectives set by the compensation committee and in effect at the end of 2009. The target award amount for each of Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran was \$150,000. The actual payout amount of each award was based on the target amount, subject to increase or decrease by multiplying the target amount by a corporate performance multiplier determined by the compensation committee in the first quarter of 2010 based on its assessment of overall corporate performance in 2009 against the performance objectives. Award multipliers could range from zero to 1.5 and would be the same for each participant. Performance objectives were adopted at the time the plan was adopted, but, pursuant to the terms of the plan, the compensation committee had authority to adjust, re-weight, replace or eliminate any objective that became irrelevant or undesirable during the plan period or if a strategic change or other event affecting one or more of the objectives took place. Given the uncertainty of our ability to continue to operate as a going concern during 2009 and the fact that we were actively seeking strategic partners, the compensation committee determined that providing flexibility as to the performance goals under the plan was important in realizing the objectives of the plan, which were primarily to incentivize our two remaining employees to achieve near-term corporate objectives that would enhance stockholder value and incentivize these employees to remain employed by and dedicated to our company. Although the plan provided flexibility to modify the corporate performance objectives, the objectives set at the time of adoption of the plan were not subsequently changed. The corporate objectives consisted of four equally-weighted goals involving the successful completion of bioequivalence data analysis, acceptance of regulatory documents by the FDA, acceptance by the NYSE Amex of a plan to regain compliance with applicable listing criteria and maintenance of specified levels

of working capital at December 31, 2009. In January 2010, the compensation committee determined the award multiplier applicable to Mr. Culley s and Mr. Keran s target award amount under the plan would be 1.5, and, in accordance with the plan, we awarded \$225,000 to each of Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran.

20

Table of Contents

Retention and Severance Arrangements. Under the retention and severance plan we adopted in July 2009, if the employment of Mr. Culley or Mr. Keran, as applicable, terminates at any time as a result of an involuntary termination, and Mr. Culley or Mr. Keran, as applicable, delivers and does not revoke a general release of claims, which will also confirm any post-termination obligations and/or restrictions applicable to him, he will be entitled to (i) an amount equal to 12 months of his then-current base salary, less applicable withholdings, and (ii) an amount equal to the estimated cost of continuing his healthcare coverage and the coverage of his dependents who are covered at the time of the involuntary termination under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended, for a period equal to 12 months. These severance benefits will be paid in a lump-sum on the date the general release of claims becomes effective. As of December 31, 2009, our aggregate contractual obligation under the retention and severance plan, including applicable payroll and employer taxes, was \$350,130 for Mr. Culley and \$323,753 for Mr. Keran.

For purposes of the retention and severance plan, an involuntary termination means (i) without the employee s express written consent, an action by our board of directors or external events causing or immediately portending a material reduction or alteration of the employee s duties, position or responsibilities relative to the employee s duties, position or responsibilities in effect immediately prior to such reduction or alteration, or the removal of the employee from such position, duties or responsibilities; provided, however, that an involuntary termination shall not be deemed to occur (a) with respect to Mr. Culley, if Mr. Culley remains the head of and most senior individual within our company s (or our successor s) business development function and (B) with respect to Mr. Keran, if Mr. Keran remains the head of and most senior individual within our company s (or our successor s) legal function; (ii) without the employee s express written consent, a material reduction by us of the employee s base salary as in effect immediately prior to such reduction; (iii) without the employee s express written consent, the relocation of the employee s principal place of employment with us by more than 50 miles; (iv) any termination of the employee by us without cause (as defined below); or (v) a material breach of the retention and severance plan, including, but not limited to our failure to obtain the assumption of the retention and severance plan by any successors as contemplated in the retention and severance plan. For purposes of the retention and severance plan, Cause means (i) any act of personal dishonesty taken by the employee in connection with his responsibilities as an employee which is intended to result in substantial personal enrichment of the employee; (ii) the employee s conviction of a felony that our board of directors reasonably believes has had or will have a material detrimental effect on our reputation or business; (iii) a willful act by the employee that constitutes misconduct and is materially injurious to us, or (iv) continued willful violations by the employee of the employee s obligations to us after there has been delivered to the employee a written demand for performance from us that describes the basis for our belief that the employee has not substantially performed his duties.

2009 Stock Option Awards

On July 21, 2009, the compensation committee granted to each of Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran a stock option to purchase up to 67,999 shares of our common stock. The per share exercise price of these options is \$3.25, which was the closing price of our common stock on July 21, 2009. The stock options were granted under our 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan and have a term of 10 years. Pursuant to the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, the exercise price per share of the options cannot be lowered without prior approval of our stockholders, except in the event of a merger, reorganization, consolidation, recapitalization, dividend or distribution (whether in cash, shares or other property, other than a regular cash dividend), stock split, reverse stock split, spin-off or similar transaction or other change in corporate structure affecting our common stock or the value thereof, in each case as the compensation committee may deem equitable or appropriate.

The stock options become exercisable, subject to Mr. Culley s and Mr. Keran s respective continuous service to us, as to one-fourth of the shares subject to the option on each of January 1, 2010, January 1, 2011, January 1, 2012 and January 1, 2013. However, in the event Mr. Culley or Mr. Keran, as applicable, ceases to provide services to us as an employee by reason of an involuntary termination, exercisability of the then-vested portion of the stock option shall be

extended such that the stock option shall be exercisable for a period of 12 months from the date of such involuntary termination. In addition, the vesting and exercisability of each option will accelerate or be extended under certain circumstances, including, (i) in the event of a change in control (as defined in our 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan), acceleration with respect to 50% of the then unvested shares on the day prior to the date of the

21

Table of Contents

change in control and, subject to the respective employee s continuous service, with respect to the remaining 50% of the then unvested shares on the one year anniversary of the date of the change in control, (ii) subject to the preceding clause (i), in the event of a change of control, to the extent the successor company (or a subsidiary or parent thereof) does not assume or substitute for the option, acceleration in full on the day prior to the date of the change in control if the employee is then providing services or was the subject of an involuntary termination in connection with, related to or in contemplation of the change in control and exercisability for a period of 24 months from the date of such involuntary termination, and (iii) subject to the preceding clause (i), in the event of a change of control, to the extent the successor company (or a subsidiary or parent thereof) assumes or substitutes for the option, and in the event of an involuntary termination of the employee within 12 months following the date of the change in control, acceleration in full and exercisability for a period of 24 months from the date of such involuntary termination.

In January 2010, we modified the stock options granted to Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran in July 2009 such that in the event of an involuntary termination of Mr. Culley or Mr. Keran, as applicable, his stock option will, immediately prior to such involuntary termination, vest and become exercisable with respect to 25% of the total number of shares subject to the applicable option, or 17,000 shares. For purposes of the July 2009 stock options, the definition of involuntary termination is the same as under the retention and severance plan described above, except it does not include clause (v) regarding breach of the retention and severance plan.

We structured the number of shares underlying and the vesting schedule of the July 2009 stock options primarily to retain and incentivize our executives, and not primarily as a form of compensation or to recognize previous individual or corporate performance. In particular, we did not view these awards as typical annual option grants. The compensation committee granted these awards to retain and properly incentivize the individuals capable of maximizing the potential of our assets. Without a substantial opportunity to participate in our future success, we were concerned that we would be unable to retain Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran, who at the time were our only employees. In addition, the annual, cliff-based vesting schedule of the July 2009 stock options was structured to provide substantial retentive value.

As a condition to the grant of the July 2009 stock options, both Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran agreed to terminate the awards of restricted stock units, representing the right to receive 48,000 and 34,000 shares, respectively, of our common stock, that we granted to Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran in January 2009.

Other Employment Benefits and Arrangements

Vacation Benefits. Mr. Culley accrues 25 vacation days per year and Mr. Keran accrues 23 vacation days per year, subject to adjustment based on the number of years of the officer s employment with us. As of December 31, 2009, Mr. Culley had accrued 50 vacation days and Mr. Keran had accrued 46 vacation days, which is the maximum amount they can accrue under our vacation benefits policy. Pursuant to our policy, employees may not accrue vacation days in excess of twice their annual vacation accrual rate. Accordingly, until Mr. Culley or Mr. Keran uses his accrued vacation days, he will not accrue additional vacation days unless his annual accrual rate increases. If Mr. Culley s or Mr. Keran s employment with us had terminated as of December 31, 2009, our aggregate vacation benefits payment obligation, including applicable payroll and employer taxes, would have been approximately \$61,456 for Mr. Culley and approximately \$51,873 for Mr. Keran.

Other Agreements. It is our policy that, at the beginning of employment, all employees sign our standard confidential information, non-solicitation and invention assignment agreement for employees. Under the current version of this agreement, employees agree that, during the period of the employee s service to us and for one year thereafter, the employee will not (a) solicit any employee or consultant of ours to leave the employ of or terminate any relationship with us or (b) solicit the business of any client or customer of ours using our confidential information. Each of Mr. Culley and Mr. Keran has signed one of these agreements.

Consulting Arrangements with Michele Yelmene

Ms. Yelmene served as our vice president, regulatory affairs and quality until July 1, 2009. We had entered into a retention and incentive agreement with Ms. Yelmene in January 2009, but no amounts were due to Ms. Yelmene pursuant to that agreement in connection with the termination of her employment with us in July 2009.

22

Table of Contents

Effective as of July 15, 2009, we entered into a consulting agreement with Ms. Yelmene, pursuant to which she agreed to provide consulting services to us from time to time at a rate of \$225 per hour through December 31, 2009. Pursuant to the consulting agreement, Ms. Yelmene s services to us include making herself available to transition her former duties to designated employees or representatives of ours, responding to inquiries of our personnel regarding regulatory, quality-assurance, clinical, manufacturing and related matters, and providing advice and assistance regarding special projects or any other matter consistent with Ms. Yelmene s background, skills and experience as we may request from time to time. Effective as of December 31, 2009, the consulting agreement with Ms. Yelmene was amended to extend the term of the agreement to December 31, 2010. Pursuant to the consulting agreement, as amended, the maximum amount of fees to be incurred by us without specific prior written approval by us is \$100,000.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 2009

The following table sets forth information regarding outstanding equity awards held by our named executive officers at the end of fiscal 2009. All share and per share information included in this table reflects retrospective application of the 1-for-25 reverse split of our outstanding common stock effected on April 23, 2010.

		Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End for Fiscal Year 2009							
		$\mathbf{O}_{\mathbf{j}}$	ption Awaı	ds			Stoc	k Awar	
									Equity
								-	Incentive
							_	Equity	Plan
							1		eAwards:
			Equity					Plan	Market or
			Incentive			N	Aarket	Awards	Payout
							Value 1	Number	•
			Plan				of	of	Value of
									Unearned
			Awards:			Number	harek	Jnearne	d Shares,
			Number			of	or		
	Number of	Number of	of			Shares	Units	Shares,	Units or
						or	of	Units	
	Securities	Securities	Securities			Units	Stock	or	Other
	T7 1 1 •	TT 1 1 .	T7 1 1 1 1			of		0.41	D: 14
	Underlying	Underlying	• •	•				Other	Rights
	Unexercised	Unexercised	Unexercise	d Option			Have	Rights	That
	0.4	0.4	TT 1		0.4	Have	NT 4	That	Have
	Options	Options	Unearned	Exercise	Option	Not	Not	Have Not	Not
	(#)	(#)	Options	Price	Expiration			Vested	Vested
Name	Exercisable	Unexercisabl	e (#)	(\$)	Date	(#)	(\$)	(#)	(\$)
Brian M. Culley	4,000			\$ 57.50	7/13/2015				
	3,133(1)	67(1)		\$ 118.75	1/30/2016				
	4,374(2)	1,625(2)		\$ 68.75	1/11/2017				
	1,600(3)	6,400(3)		\$ 13.50	3/30/2018				
		67,999(4)		\$ 3.25	7/20/2019				
Patrick L. Keran	3,333(5)	667(5)		\$ 74.75	8/17/2016				

1,457(2)	542(2)	\$ 68.75	1/11/2017
1,600(3)	6,400(3)	\$ 13.50	3/30/2018
	67.999(4)	\$ 3.25	7/20/2019

Michele L. Yelmene

- (1) Subject to accelerated vesting in the event of a change in control, as described below under Acceleration of Vesting of Stock Options Granted Under 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, this option vested and became exercisable with respect to 1/4 of the total underlying shares on January 1, 2007 and vests and becomes exercisable with respect to 1/48 of the total underlying shares at the end of each successive calendar month thereafter.
- (2) Subject to accelerated vesting in the event of a change in control or an involuntary termination within 24 months of a change in control, as described below under Acceleration of Vesting of Stock Options Granted Under 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, this option vested and became exercisable with respect to 1/4 of the total underlying shares subject to the option on January 1, 2008 and vests and becomes exercisable with respect to 1/48 of the total underlying shares at the end of each successive month thereafter.
- (3) Subject to accelerated vesting in the event of a change in control or an involuntary termination within 24 months of a change in control, as described below under Acceleration of Vesting of Stock Options Granted Under 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, this option vested and became exercisable with respect to 1/5 of the total underlying

23

Table of Contents

shares on each of January 1, 2009 and January 1, 2010, and vests and becomes exercisable with respect to 1/5 of the total underlying shares on each of January 1, 2011, January 1, 2012 and January 1, 2013.

- (4) Subject to accelerated vesting in the event of a change in control or an involuntary termination, as described above under Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table 2009 Stock Option Awards, this option vested and became exercisable with respect to 1/4 of the total underlying shares on January 1, 2010 and vests and becomes exercisable with respect to 1/4 of the total underlying shares on each of January 1, 2011, January 1, 2012 and January 1, 2013.
- (5) Subject to accelerated vesting in the event of a change in control or an involuntary termination within 24 months of a change in control, as described below under Acceleration of Vesting of Stock Options Granted Under 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, this option vested and became exercisable with respect to 1/4 of the total underlying shares subject to the option on August 7, 2007 and vests and becomes exercisable with respect to 1/48 of the total underlying shares at the end of each successive month thereafter.

Acceleration of Vesting of Outstanding Stock Options Granted Under 2005 Equity Incentive Plan

All of the stock options held by our named executive officers that were granted before July 2009 were granted under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan. The stock option agreements governing the options granted to our named executive officers before August 2006 provide that the options will accelerate in full in the event of an acquisition constituting a change of control (as such terms are defined in the stock option agreement) if the option holder remains employed by us as of the closing date of such acquisition and the option is not assumed or replaced by the successor or acquiring entity or the entity in control of such successor or acquiring entity. Otherwise, the option will not accelerate in the event of such an acquisition. The stock option agreements governing the options granted to our named executive officers in and after August 2006 additionally provide that, if following a change of control in which an option is assumed as described above, the option holder is subject to an involuntary termination within 24 months after the closing date of such change in control, the vesting of the assumed option will be accelerated such that the option will vest as of the effective date of such involuntary termination with respect to all shares that would have vested during the period from the date of the option holder s involuntary termination until the date that is 24 months after the closing date of such change in control if such option holder had not been involuntarily terminated. For purposes of these stock option agreements, an involuntary termination is a termination of employment that occurs by reason of dismissal for any reason other than misconduct or of voluntary resignation following: (i) a change in position that materially reduces the level of the employee s responsibility, (ii) a material reduction in the employee s base salary, or (iii) relocation by more than 50 miles; provided that (ii) and (iii) will apply only if the employee has not consented to the change or relocation.

Misconduct means the commission of any act of fraud, embezzlement or dishonesty by the employee, any unauthorized use or disclosure by the employee of confidential information or trade secrets of our company (or any parent or subsidiary), or any other intentional misconduct by the employee adversely affecting our business affairs (or those of any parent or subsidiary) in a material manner. All of the stock option agreements governing the options granted to our named executive officers in January 2007 contain this double trigger acceleration provision.

Although the terms of the stock options granted to our named executive officers under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan provide for acceleration of vesting in certain circumstances as described above, our named executive officers would not have realized any value from these options as a result of the acceleration provisions if any of the acceleration scenarios had occurred on December 31, 2009 because none of these options were in-the-money on December 31, 2009, meaning none of them had an exercise price per share less than the market value per share of our common stock. The market value of our common stock is based on the closing market price of our common stock, which was \$8.7475 per share on December 31, 2009.

Tax-Qualified Defined Contribution Plan

We have a defined contribution savings plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the IRC. The plan is for the benefit of all employees and permits voluntary contributions by qualifying employees of up to 100% of eligible compensation, subject to Internal Revenue Service-imposed maximum limits. From January 1, 2008 until May 16, 2009, the terms of the plan required us to make matching contributions equal to 100% of employee contributions up

24

Table of Contents

to 6% of eligible compensation, limited by the IRS-imposed maximum. In April 2009, we amended the plan such that we were not required to make matching contributions on any employee contributions made by a highly compensated employee, which included Mr. Culley, Mr. Keran and Ms. Yelmene, from May 16, 2009 through December 31, 2009. We incurred total expenses of approximately \$29,661 and \$218,150 in employer matching contributions in 2009 and 2008, respectively. In November 2009, we amended the plan to reinstate the 6% matching contribution effective for the plan year beginning January 1, 2010.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The following table shows compensation information for the individuals who served as our non-employee directors during the year ended December 31, 2009. Directors who are also our employees do not receive any additional compensation for their services as directors. Currently, none of our directors is also an employee of our company. All share and per share information included below reflects retrospective application of the 1-for-25 reverse split of our outstanding common stock effected on April 23, 2010.

Director Compensation for Fiscal Year 2009

		No				
	Fees Earned or		ncentive Plan Compensatio	n Al	l Other	
Name	-	-	npensatio Earnings			Total
Mark N. K. Bagnall(1)	\$ 6,495			\$ 1	91,952(2)	\$ 198,447
Alexander J. Denner(3)	\$ 11,902					\$ 11,902
Michael M. Goldberg	\$ 33,000					\$ 33,000
Jack Lief	\$ 54,500					\$ 54,500
Mark J. Pykett	\$ 33,000					\$ 33,000
Eric K. Rowinsky	\$ 27,000			\$	1,050(4)	\$ 28,050

- (1) Mr. Bagnall resigned from our board of directors effective August 24, 2009. His resignation was not due to a disagreement with us on any matter relating to our operations, policies or practices.
- (2) This amount consists of (a) a severance payment of \$165,500, (b) a severance-related health benefit allowance of \$18,352, and (c) consulting fees of \$8,100. See Separation and Consulting Services Agreements with Mark N. K. Bagnall below for a description of our employment separation and consulting agreements with Mr. Bagnall.
- (3) Dr. Denner resigned from our board of directors and the compensation committee effective October 16, 2009. His resignation was not due to a disagreement with us on any matter relating to our operations, policies or practices.
- (4) This amount represents fees earned for consulting services provided to us under a consulting agreement with Dr. Rowinsky. See Consulting Services Agreement with Eric K. Rowinsky below for a description of our consulting services agreement with Dr. Rowinsky.

Overview of Non-Employee Director Compensation

Retainer

During 2009, we paid our non-employee directors quarterly cash retainers and board of director and committee meeting fees. The amounts of the quarterly retainers vary depending on the non-employee director s role on our board of directors and its committees, as set forth in the table below:

2009 Quarterly Retainer

	Chairperson	Member
Board of Directors	\$ 6,250	\$ 2,500
Audit Committee	\$ 5,000	\$ 2,500
Compensation Committee	\$ 2,500	\$ 1,250
Nominating and Governance Committee	\$ 2,500	\$ 1,250
Research and Development Committee	\$ 2,500	\$ 1,250

In January 2010, our board of directors adopted a compensation policy applicable to all non-employee directors beginning January 1, 2010. Under this new policy, our non-employee directors will continue to be eligible to receive quarterly retainers based on each director—s role on our board of directors and its committees, but the amounts of such retainers have changed and are as set forth in the table below:

2010 Quarterly Retainer

	Chairperson	Member
Board of Directors	\$ 10,000*	\$ 5,000
Audit Committee	\$ 1,875	\$
Compensation Committee	\$ 875	\$
Nominating and Governance Committee	\$ 875	\$
Research and Development Committee**	\$ 875	\$

^{*} If, in the future, our board of directors appoints a lead independent director, such director s quarterly retainer would be \$10,000 per quarter.

Meeting Fees

In addition to the quarterly retainers, in 2009, we paid \$1,000 per meeting to each director who attended in person (\$500 for attendance via telephone) a meeting of our board of directors or any committee of our board of directors with a duration of more than 15 minutes. Such meeting fees were not paid in respect of (i) the first four meetings of our board of directors held during each calendar year, (ii) the first four meetings of the audit committee held during each calendar year or

^{**} The research and development committee was disbanded by our board of directors in March 2010.

(iv) the first meeting of the nominating and governance committee held during each calendar year.

Pursuant to our new non-employee director compensation policy, beginning January 1, 2010, we pay \$1,000 per meeting to each non-employee director for each meeting of our board of directors or any committee of our board of directors attended by such director (whether such attendance is in person or by telephone, videoconference or other comparable communication device).

In addition to the quarterly retainer and meeting fees, we reimburse our directors for travel and other reasonable out-of-pocket expenses related to attendance at our board of directors and committee meetings.

26

Table of Contents

Equity Compensation

Pursuant to the terms of our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, each of our non-employee directors was automatically granted a nonstatutory option to purchase 2,000 shares of our common stock at the first meeting of our board of directors following each annual meeting of stockholders, provided that such non-employee director had served on our board of directors for at least the preceding six months. The exercise price per share of each such option was equal to 105% of the per-share fair market value of our common stock on the grant date. Subject to the director's continuous service, each option became exercisable as to 1/12th of the shares underlying the option at the end of each calendar month after its date of grant. The options expire no later than 10 years after the date of grant. In May 2008, our stockholders approved our 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan. Following adoption of our 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, no additional awards (including the automatic options to our non-employee directors described above) have been or will be made under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan; however, our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan will continue to govern any outstanding awards (including the automatic options to our non-employee directors described above) previously granted under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan.

Awards under our 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan are at the discretion of our board of directors or the compensation committee of our board of directors. Unlike our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, our 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan does not provide for automatic awards to our directors. During 2009, no stock options or other equity awards were granted to our directors. However, pursuant to the director compensation policy adopted in January 2010, each non-employee director who was a non-employee director on January 25, 2010 was eligible to receive (i) a re-inducement option to purchase 4,000 shares of our common stock and (ii) a make-up option to purchase 4,000 shares of our common stock. The re-inducement and make-up options were approved by our board of directors on January 25, 2010, but the grants were subject to our receipt of a waiver under the Rights Agreement. Upon our receipt of such waiver on February 2, 2010, the re-inducement and make-up options were granted to each of Mr. Lief and Drs. Goldberg, Pykett and Rowinsky. Each of the re-inducement and make-up options has an exercise price of \$8.00 per share, which was the closing price of our common stock on February 2, 2010. Each re-inducement option vests and becomes exercisable in 36 substantially equal monthly installments of 1/36th of the shares subject to the option at the end of each successive month following the date of grant, subject to the director s continuing service (as defined in the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan). Each make-up option vests and becomes exercisable in 12 substantially equal monthly installments of 1/12th of the shares subject to the option at the end of each successive month following June 3, 2009, subject to the director s continuing service.

In addition, our new non-employee director compensation policy provides for annual stock option awards and new director inducement stock option awards. Pursuant to the policy, each non-employee director who is serving as such on the date of each annual meeting of our stockholders shall be eligible to receive an option to purchase 4,000 shares of our common stock, unless such director s initial election or appointment to our board of directors is at such annual meeting of stockholders or on a date that is less than 30 days before such annual meeting. Non-employee directors initially elected or appointed to our board of directors more than 30 days before the date of the next annual meeting of our stockholders shall be eligible to receive a pro-rated annual option based on the number of full 30-day periods between their initial appointment to our board of directors and the next annual meeting of our stockholders. Each annual option shall become vested and exercisable in 12 substantially equal monthly installments of 1/12th of the shares subject to the option at the end of each successive month following the date of the applicable annual meeting of our stockholders, subject to the director s continuing service. Each pro-rated annual option shall become vested and exercisable in such number of substantially equal monthly installments as is equal to the number of full 30-day periods between such new director s initial appointment or election to our board of directors and the date of the next annual meeting of our stockholders. If, on the date of a new director s initial appointment or election the date of the next annual meeting of our stockholders has not been set by our board of directors, the vesting schedule for that director s pro-rated annual option shall be based on the one-year anniversary of the immediately preceding annual meeting of our stockholders. In addition, each newly elected or appointed non-employee director shall also be eligible

to receive an inducement option to purchase 4,000 shares of our common stock in connection with his or her election or appointment to our board of directors. Each inducement option shall become vested and exercisable in 36 substantially equal monthly installments of 1/36th of the shares subject to the option at the end of each successive month following the date of the director s initial appointment or election to our board of directors, subject to the director s continuing service. In connection with Dr. Kostas appointment to our

27

Table of Contents

board of directors, consistent with the non-employee director compensation policy, on February 2, 2010, our board granted to Dr. Kostas two stock options, one to purchase 4,000 shares of our common stock, or the Appointment Option, and the other to purchase 1,333 shares of our common stock, or the Pro-Rated Annual Option, both of which have an exercise price of \$8.00, which was the closing price of our common stock on February 2, 2010. The Appointment Option vests and becomes exercisable in 36 substantially equal monthly installments of 1/36th of the shares subject to the option at the end of each successive month following February 1, 2010, and the Pro-Rated Option vests and becomes exercisable in four substantially equal monthly installments of 1/4th of the shares subject to the option at the end of each successive month following February 1, 2010, in each case subject to Dr. Kostas continuing service (as defined in the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan).

Each stock option granted under our non-employee director compensation policy shall be granted under our 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, shall have an exercise price per share equal to the fair market value (as defined in the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan) of a share of our common stock on the date the option is granted, and shall have a term equal to the shorter of (i) ten years from the date the option is granted and (ii) three years from the date such non-employee director ceases to provide services (as defined in the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan) to us for any reason other than such director s death or disability. In addition, in the event of a change of control of the Company, each stock option will vest and become exercisable on the day prior to the date of the change in control if the director is then providing services (as defined in the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan), and each option will terminate on the date of the change in control to the extent not exercised.

Separation and Consulting Services Agreements with Mark N. K. Bagnall

Mark N. K. Bagnall was employed by us from April 2008 to December 2008 as our chief financial officer, executive vice president and treasurer. Mr. Bagnall also served as a member of our board of directors from February 2004 to August 2009. In January 2009, we entered into a Confidential Separation Agreement and General Release of All Claims with Mr. Bagnall, which we refer to herein as the Bagnall Separation Agreement, regarding the terms of his employment separation.

As set forth in the Bagnall Separation Agreement, in exchange for a release of claims and Mr. Bagnall s agreement and representations (as more fully described below), we agreed to provide a severance payment of \$165,500 to Mr. Bagnall, and each of us and Mr. Bagnall agreed to enter into a consulting relationship. In addition, we agreed to provide a health benefit allowance of \$18,352, which Mr. Bagnall could use, at his discretion, to pay the premiums required to continue his group health care coverage under COBRA or any other health care related expenses. The severance payment and the health benefit allowance were paid in one lump sum, less applicable payroll deductions and required withholdings, in January 2009. The severance provisions set forth in the Bagnall Separation Agreement supersede and replace the severance provisions set forth in Mr. Bagnall s offer letter from us, which was effective as of April 3, 2008 and amended as of December 11, 2008. Pursuant to the terms of the stock option granted to Mr. Bagnall in April 2008 in connection with the commencement of his employment, 4,000 shares underlying that option vested and became exercisable immediately prior to Mr. Bagnall s involuntary termination in December 2008. As a result of Mr. Bagnall s remaining in continuous service to us after the termination of his employment, this option has continued and will continue to vest until such time as Mr. Bagnall is no longer in continuous service to us.

Under the Bagnall Separation Agreement, Mr. Bagnall represented that he returned to us all property, data and information belonging to us other than is reasonably required by Mr. Bagnall to perform services as a member of our board of directors or is reasonably related to such services or is needed by Mr. Bagnall to provide services as a consultant to us. Mr. Bagnall agreed not to use or disclose to others any confidential or proprietary information of ours, except, as applicable, in connection with Mr. Bagnall s position as a member of our board of directors or as a consultant to us, in which case such use and disclosure will be governed by such documents, agreements and duties as apply to such positions. Mr. Bagnall further agreed to comply with his continuing obligations under various

agreements and other documents as previously executed by him. In addition, Mr. Bagnall agreed that he will not make any voluntary statements, written or oral, or cause or encourage others to make any such statements, that defame, disparage or in any way criticize the personal and/or business reputation, practices or conduct of our company or our employees, officers and directors, among others. Mr. Bagnall also represented that he had not filed any lawsuits, complaints or other accusatory pleadings against us. Finally, Mr. Bagnall agreed, at the end of the

28

Table of Contents

consulting period, to extend and reaffirm the promises made by Mr. Bagnall in the Bagnall Separation Agreement, including the release of claims.

In December 2008, we entered into a consulting agreement with Mr. Bagnall. Under the consulting agreement, Mr. Bagnall agreed to provide consulting services on an as-needed basis to assist us in identifying and evaluating strategic options and to respond to inquiries regarding finance and other matters, and we agreed to pay Mr. Bagnall \$100 per hour. Either party could terminate the consulting agreement upon written notice. In February 2009, we and Mr. Bagnall amended the consulting agreement to include services related to Mr. Bagnall acting as our interim principal financial and accounting officer, and we agreed to pay Mr. Bagnall \$250 per hour for services provided after such amendment, capped at \$8,000 in the aggregate. In July 2009, we terminated the consulting agreement with Mr. Bagnall. In August 2009, we entered into a new consulting agreement with Mr. Bagnall. Under the August 2009 consulting agreement, which has a one-year term, we pay Mr. Bagnall at a rate of \$250 per hour for services he provides to us, capped at \$25,000. We are obligated to request at least four hours of services per month or to pay for a minimum of four hours of services, or \$1,000 per month.

Consulting Services Agreement with Eric K. Rowinsky

As of November 23, 2009, we entered into a consulting agreement with Eric K. Rowinsky, a member of our board of directors, pursuant to which Dr. Rowinsky will provide consulting services to us from time to time at our request. His services to us may include responding to inquiries of ours regarding medical and clinical matters with which Dr. Rowinsky has knowledge, attending and participating in, at our request, a meeting with the FDA regarding our new drug application for ANX-530, or Exelbinetm, and providing advice and assistance regarding special projects or any other matter consistent with Dr. Rowinsky s background, skills and experience, which are described under Nominees for Election to the Board, above. The consulting agreement has a one-year term. Under the agreement, we pay Dr. Rowinsky at a rate of \$350 per hour for the services he provides to us, capped at \$100,000.

29

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Under the guidance of a written charter adopted by our board of directors, the purpose of the audit committee is to oversee our accounting and financial reporting processes and audits of our financial statements and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. The responsibilities of the audit committee include appointing and providing for the compensation of an independent registered public accounting firm to conduct an annual audit of our financial statements and overseeing the work and evaluating the performance of the independent auditor. Each of the members of the audit committee meets the independence and qualification requirements of the NYSE Amex.

Management has primary responsibility for the financial statements and the reporting process, including the system of internal controls. The independent registered public accounting firm has the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements based on an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.

In this context and in connection with the audited financial statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, the audit committee:

reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 with the Company s management;

discussed with J.H. Cohn LLP, the Company s independent registered public accounting firm, the matters required to be discussed by Statement of Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended, as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 3200T;

reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from J.H. Cohn LLP required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent accountant s communications with the audit committee concerning independence, and has discussed with J.H. Cohn LLP its independence; and

based on the foregoing reviews and discussions, recommended to the board of directors that the audited financial statements be included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 filed with the SEC.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Jack Lief, Chair Michael M. Goldberg Odysseas D. Kostas

The preceding Audit Committee Report shall not be deemed soliciting material or filed with the SEC, nor shall any information in this report be incorporated by reference into any past or future filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing.

30

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The audit committee has appointed J.H. Cohn LLP as the Company s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010. We are asking our stockholders to ratify this appointment.

J.H. Cohn LLP served as our independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal years 2008 and 2009. The following table shows the fees paid or accrued by us for the audit and other services provided by J.H. Cohn LLP for fiscal years 2008 and 2009.

	2008	2009
Audit Fees(1) Audit-Related Fees(2) Tax Fees All Other Fees	\$ 188,779 14,500	\$ 217,000 8,339
Total	\$ 203,279	\$ 225,339

- (1) Audit Fees represent fees for professional services provided in connection with the audit of our annual financial statements (including the audit of internal controls over financial reporting under Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act, if conducted), review of our quarterly financial statements, review of our registration statements on Forms S-3 and S-1, and related services normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings and engagements.
- (2) Audit-Related Fees consist primarily of assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the annual audit or review of our financial statements. During 2008 and 2009, such fees were incurred for consultation in responding to SEC staff comments regarding our financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 and our internal control over financial reporting.

Policy Regarding Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services by the Company s Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We have established a policy that all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm will be pre-approved by the audit committee. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. The audit committee considers whether the provision of each non-audit service is compatible with maintaining the independence of our auditors.

31

PROPOSAL 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

At the Annual Meeting, our stockholders will vote on the election of five directors to serve for one-year terms until the 2011 annual meeting of stockholders and until their successors are elected and qualified, or until their earlier death, retirement, resignation or removal. Our board of directors has unanimously nominated Michael M. Goldberg, Odysseas D. Kostas, Jack Lief, Mark J. Pykett and Eric K. Rowinsky for election to our board of directors at the Annual Meeting. The director nominees have indicated that they are willing and able to serve as directors. If any of the nominees becomes unable or unwilling to serve, the accompanying proxy may be voted for the election of such other person as shall be designated by our board of directors. The proxies being solicited will be voted for no more than five nominees at the Annual Meeting. Assuming a quorum is present at the Annual Meeting, each director nominee who receives an affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock having voting power present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting will be elected. Abstentions will have the same effect as negative votes. Broker non-votes will not be counted and will have no effect on the outcome of this proposal. Stockholders do not have cumulative voting rights in the election of directors.

Our board of directors recommends a vote FOR the election of Michael M. Goldberg, Odysseas D. Kostas, Jack Lief, Mark J. Pykett and Eric K. Rowinsky as directors.

Unless otherwise instructed, it is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying proxy card to vote shares represented by properly executed proxy cards for the election of Michael M. Goldberg, Odysseas D. Kostas, Jack Lief, Mark J. Pykett and Eric K. Rowinsky.

PROPOSAL 2 RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

At the Annual Meeting, our stockholders will be asked to ratify the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010. Stockholder ratification of the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm is not required by our bylaws or otherwise. However, our board of directors is submitting the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP to our stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. If our stockholders do not ratify the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP, the audit committee will reconsider this appointment. Even if the appointment is ratified, the audit committee, in its discretion, may appoint a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if the audit committee determines that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company and our stockholders. Assuming a quorum is present at the Annual Meeting, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock having voting power present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting is required to approve this proposal. Abstentions will have the same effect as negative votes. A broker or other nominee will generally have discretionary authority to vote on this proposal because it is considered a routine matter, and therefore we do not expect broker non-votes with respect to this proposal.

We expect representatives of J.H. Cohn LLP to be present at the Annual Meeting and they will have the opportunity to make a statement at the Annual Meeting if they so desire. We also expect such representatives to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Our board of directors recommends a vote FOR the ratification of the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010.

OTHER MATTERS

As of the time of preparation of this proxy statement, neither our board of directors nor our management knows of any matter to be presented at the Annual Meeting which is not listed in the Notice of Annual Meeting accompanying this proxy statement and described in this proxy statement. If any other matters should properly come before the Annual Meeting, or any adjournment or postponement thereof, however, the persons named in the accompanying proxy will vote on such matters in accordance with their judgment.

32

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2011 ANNUAL MEETING

The deadline for submitting a stockholder proposal for inclusion in our proxy materials for our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is January 27, 2011, which is 120 days prior to the first anniversary of the mailing date of this proxy statement. These proposals must be delivered to our principal executive offices and comply with the requirements as to form and substance established by the SEC for such proposals in order to be included in our proxy materials. Stockholders who wish to nominate persons for election to our board of directors or make a proposal at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders without including the proposal in our proxy materials relating to that meeting must notify us in writing delivered to our principal executive offices no earlier than March 2, 2011 and no later than April 1, 2011. Stockholders are advised to review our bylaws, which contain additional advance notice requirements. A copy of our bylaws is available to stockholders upon written request to our corporate secretary.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Brian M. Culley *Chief Executive Officer*

San Diego, California May 27, 2010

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT!

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting. However, to ensure that your shares are represented at the Annual Meeting, please submit your proxy promptly by signing, dating and returning your proxy card in the postage paid envelope provided. This will not prevent you from attending or voting in person at the Annual Meeting if you so desire, but will help the Company secure a quorum and avoid added proxy solicitation costs.

33

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS OF ADVENTRX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. June 30, 2010

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE STOCKHOLDERS MEETING TO BE HELD ON JUNE 30, 2010:

Our notice of meeting, proxy statement and annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 may be viewed at https://www.proxydocs.com/anx.

Please sign, date and mail your proxy card in the envelope provided as soon as possible.

 \downarrow Please detach along perforated line and mail in the envelope provided. \downarrow

n 00003333330000000000 3 063010

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF THE DIRECTOR NOMINEES LISTED IN PROPOSAL 1 AND FOR PROPOSAL 2.

PLEASE SIGN, DATE AND RETURN PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. PLEASE MARK YOUR VOTE IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS SHOWN HERE x

To change the address on your account, please check the box at right and indicate your new address in the address space above. Please note that changes to the registered name(s) on the account may not be submitted via this method.

1. Election of five directors to hold office until the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until their successors are elected and qualified. The director nominees are:

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

	гОК	AGAINST	ADSTAIR
Michael M. Goldberg	o	0	O
Odysseas D. Kostas	o	0	O
Jack Lief	O	O	O

Mark J.	Pykett	O	o	O
Eric K.	Rowinsky	o	o	O
2. Ratifica	ation of the appointment of J.H. Cohn LLP as the Company s independ	ent o	O	O
register	ed public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010.			
The shares	represented by this proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the	e manner s	pecified al	bove by the
undersigne	ed stockholder. IF NO DIRECTION IS GIVEN, THE SHARES REPR	RESENTE	D BY TH	IS PROXY
WILL BE	VOTED FOR THE DIRECTOR NOMINEES LISTED IN PROPO	SAL 1 AN	D FOR	PROPOSAL 2.
This proxy	may be revoked by the undersigned at any time prior to the time voting be	egins at the	meeting b	y any of the
means desc	cribed in the accompanying proxy statement.			
Please con	uplete, sign and date this proxy card and return it in the envelope prov	ided as soc	n as possi	ible.
	Signature of			
Signature of	of Stockholder Date: Stockholder		Date:	
Note:	Please sign exactly as your name or names appear on this Proxy. When sl		•	
	holder should sign. When signing as executor, administrator, attorney, t	_		
	give full title as such. If the signer is a corporation, please sign full	_	-	•
	authorized officer, giving full title as such. If signer is a partnership, j	olease sign	in partner	ship
	name by authorized person.			
n				n

\$ 328

ADVENTRX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. PROXY SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD JUNE 30, 2010

n

The undersigned stockholder of ADVENTRX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the Company) hereby appoints Brian M. Culley and Patrick L. Keran, or any one of them with full power of substitution, as proxies of the undersigned to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held on June 30, 2010 at 9:00 a.m., Pacific time, and any adjournment or postponement thereof, hereby revoking any proxies heretofore given, and to vote all shares of common stock of the Company held or owned by the undersigned as specified on the reverse side of this proxy card, and in their discretion upon any other matter that may properly come before the meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

See reverse for voting instructions.

14475 n 120 199 101 Use of reserve for warranty obligations (80 (116)(211)(152)Balance, end of period \$ 343

\$ 343

\$ 328

Warranty reserves are included in accrued liabilities in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.

7. Pension Expense

Pension expense related to the Company's defined benefit pension plan for the three- and six-month periods ended June 28, 2015, and June 29, 2014, follows:

	Three Months	Ended	Six Months Ended		
	June 28,	June 29,	June 28,	June 29,	
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
Interest cost	\$1,445	\$2,225	\$2,890	\$4,450	
Expected return on plan assets	(2,618) (3,100) (5,237	(6,200)	
Recognized net actuarial losses	1,675	1,800	3,351	3,600	
Total net pension expense	\$502	\$925	\$1,004	\$1,850	

The Company did not make any contributions to its pension plan assets in the first six months of fiscal 2015, and current actuarial estimates indicate that no minimum required contributions will be due for the remainder of fiscal 2015.

8. Income Taxes

Due to historical taxable losses, the Company provides valuation reserves against its U.S. deferred tax assets. A portion of the Company's deferred tax liability relates to tax-deductible amortization of goodwill that is no longer amortized for financial reporting purposes. These deferred tax liabilities are considered to have an indefinite life and are therefore ineligible to be considered as a source of future taxable income in assessing the realization of deferred tax assets.

The Company's provision for income taxes for the three-month periods ended June 28, 2015, and June 29, 2014, includes \$15 and \$240, respectively, of deferred income tax expense related to the increase in the Company's deferred tax liability resulting from the tax-deductible amortization of goodwill. The Company's provision for income taxes for the six-month periods ended June 28, 2015, and June 29, 2014, includes \$30 and \$480, respectively, of deferred income tax expense related to the increase in the Company's deferred tax liability resulting from the tax-deductible amortization of goodwill, with the remaining tax provision for each of those periods comprised mainly of income taxes of the Company's foreign subsidiary in Canada.

12

Table of Contents

9. Bank Borrowing Arrangements

In November 2007, the Company entered into an agreement with Associated Bank, N.A. ("Associated Bank") providing for a \$10 million revolving credit facility (the "revolving facility"). Borrowings under the revolving facility bore interest at the London Interbank Offering Rate ("LIBOR") plus 1.5%, with borrowing levels determined by a borrowing base formula as defined in the agreement, which included the level of eligible accounts receivable. The revolving facility also supports the issuance of letters of credit, places certain restrictions on the Company's ability to pay dividends or make acquisitions, and includes covenants that require minimum operating profit levels and limit annual capital expenditures. Borrowings under the revolving facility were originally collateralized by the Company's accounts receivable and inventory.

The Company has subsequently entered into several amendments to the revolving facility, mainly to extend the maturity date of the revolving facility, to broaden the security interest of Associated Bank to collateralize all assets of the Company, and to establish or modify certain covenants with which the Company must comply under the terms of the amended revolving facility.

On June 14, 2015, the Company and Associated Bank entered into the ninth amendment to the revolving facility. The ninth amendment primarily (i) extended the maturity date of the Credit Agreement to June 12, 2016; (ii) retained the commitment amount of Associated Bank at \$12.5 million; (iii) lowered the interest rate from LIBOR plus 2.75% to LIBOR plus 2.25%; and (iv) established a maximum cash amount that can be contributed to the Company's defined benefit pension plan for the term of the agreement.

There were no amounts outstanding on the amended revolving facility, and the Company was in compliance with all covenants of the revolving facility, as amended, as of June 28, 2015.

10. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the three months ended June 28, 2015, are as follows:

	Foreign Currency	Defined Benefit Pension Plan	Total	
Balance, beginning of period	\$(175)\$(115,372)\$(115,547)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive	175		175	
income (loss)	_	1,675	1,675	
Balance, end of period	\$ —	\$(113,697)\$(113,697)

Changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the three months ended June 29, 2014, are as follows:

		Defined		
	Foreign	Benefit		
	Currency	Pension Plan	Total	
Balance, beginning of period	\$472	\$(150,270)\$(149,798)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications	194	_	194	
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive				
income (loss)		1,800	1,800	
Balance, end of period	\$666	\$(148,470)\$(147,804)

13

Table of Contents

Changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the six months ended June 28, 2015, are as follows:

	Foreign Currency	Defined Benefit Pension Plan	Total	
Balance, beginning of period	\$166	\$(117,048)\$(116,882)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications	(166)—	(166)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive				
income (loss)	_	3,351	3,351	
Balance, end of period	\$	\$(113,697)\$(113,697)

Changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the six months ended June 29, 2014, are as follows:

	Foreign Currency	Defined Benefit Pension Plan	Total	
Balance, beginning of period	\$587	\$(152,070)\$(151,483)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications	79		79	
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive				
income (loss)	_	3,600	3,600	
Balance, end of period	\$666	\$(148,470)\$(147,804)

The amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) reported in the tables above are comprised entirely of actuarial losses related to the Company's defined benefit pension plan, and are included in the computation of periodic pension expense (see Note 7 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements). There is no tax effect on any of the amounts included in the table above.

11. Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the end of the second quarter, on July 27, 2015, Magnetek and Columbus McKinnon Corporation ("Columbus McKinnon"), a leading designer, manufacturer and marketer of material handling products, announced that they have entered into a definitive agreement for Columbus McKinnon to acquire all of the outstanding shares of Magnetek for \$50 per share for a total value of \$188.9 million. The consummation of the transaction is subject to the expiration or termination of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, and other customary closing conditions.

14

Table of Contents

Item 2 – Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

Magnetek, Inc. ("Magnetek," "the Company," "we," or "us") is a global provider of digital power control systems that are used to control motion and power primarily in material handling, elevator, and mining applications. Our digital power control systems serve the needs of selected niches of traditional and emerging markets that are becoming increasingly dependent on "smart" power. We believe we are North America's largest independent supplier of digital drives, radio controls, software and accessories for industrial cranes and hoists, and believe we are also one of the largest independent suppliers of digital direct current ("DC") motion control systems for elevators. Customers include most of the industrial crane and hoist companies in North America and the world's leading elevator builders. In addition, we have a growing range of products for motion control systems used in mining equipment. We are focused on providing our customers with cost-effective power solutions that will improve efficiency, reduce costs, and save energy. Other trends in our served markets we believe we can capitalize on include the adoption of wireless control solutions, modernization and upgrading of installed equipment, and an increasing desire in our markets for added features, enhanced performance, and safer workplace environments. We believe that with our focus on innovation and our application expertise, combined with strong brand name recognition, broad product offerings and sales channel capabilities, we are positioned to grow our business by gaining share in both our served markets as well as in new markets. Our operations are located in North America, predominantly in Menomonee Falls, Wisconsin, our Company headquarters.

Our product offerings for material handling applications include innovative power control systems, radio remote controls, and braking, collision avoidance, and electrification subsystems, sold primarily to original equipment manufacturers ("OEMs") of overhead cranes and hoists. While we sell primarily to OEMs of overhead cranes and hoists, we spend a great deal of effort understanding the needs of end users to gain specification. We can combine our products with engineered services to provide complete customer-specific systems solutions. A primary driver of our growth in this market is our ability to improve our customers' operations and provide them with quantifiable, and in many cases, significant returns on invested capital.

Our product offerings for elevator applications are comprised of highly integrated subsystems and drives used to control motion primarily in high-rise, high-speed elevator applications. Our products are sold mainly to elevator OEMs and we have a significant share of the available market for DC drives and subsystems used in high-rise elevators. We believe we have opportunities for growth in available elevator markets by introducing new energy-saving product offerings for both alternating current ("AC") and DC applications, expanding the breadth of our product offerings for lower performance AC applications, and using our new product offerings to expand geographically.

Our product offerings for mining applications include drives used mainly in the underground coal mining industry. We have been a leading supplier of DC digital motion control systems to underground coal mining equipment manufacturers for over 30 years. We believe that global energy needs will continue to grow significantly for the foreseeable future, and part of that need will continue to be met by traditional coal-based sources. In addition, we intend to develop and introduce new products for hard rock and surface mining applications in an effort to reduce our reliance on the coal industry.

Continuing Operations

We focus on a variety of key indicators to monitor our business performance. These indicators include order rates, sales growth, gross profit margin, operating profit margin, net income, earnings per share, and working capital and cash flow measures. These indicators are compared to our operating plans as well as to our actual results from prior fiscal periods, and are used to measure our success relative to our objectives. Our Company objectives are to grow sales at least 5% on a year-over year basis, to achieve and maintain 35% gross margins and 10% operating profit margins, and to generate sufficient cash flow to fund our growth initiatives, our operations, and our obligations.

Our business activity improved in the second quarter fiscal 2015, as demand for our products increased in material handling markets. As a result, our sales levels increased 5% on a year-over-year basis to \$28.3 million. Our second quarter gross margin as a percentage of sales was 36.7%, compared to last year's second quarter gross margin percentage of 36.0%. Our pretax income from operations was more than \$3.2 million in the current year second quarter, and our diluted earnings per share from continuing operations increased to \$.87 per share from \$.74 per share last year.

15

Table of Contents

Macro-economic and geopolitical conditions remain quite dynamic and fragile, and it remains challenging to predict the duration or the magnitude of the current economic recovery, whether in the U.S. overall or in the specific end markets we serve.

Discontinued Operations

Certain expenses related to previously divested businesses have been classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements and footnotes for all periods presented (see Note 2 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements). Expenses related to previously divested businesses include environmental matters, asbestos claims and product liability claims (see Note 4 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements). All of these issues relate to businesses we no longer own and most relate to indemnification agreements that we entered into when we divested those businesses.

Going forward, our results of discontinued operations may include additional costs incurred related to businesses no longer owned, and may include additional costs related to the fiscal 2007 divestiture of a power electronics business.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates from the information provided in Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations", included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year year ended December 28, 2014.

Results of Operations - Three Months Ended June 28, 2015, and June 29, 2014

Net Sales and Gross Profit

Net sales for the three months ended June 28, 2015, were \$28.3 million, an increase of 5% compared to prior year sales of \$27.0 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014, as sales of products into material handling markets increased \$1.3 million, or nearly 7%. Net sales by major market were as follows, in millions:

	Three Months End	ded				
	June 28, 2015		June 29, 2014			
Material handling	\$21.1	75	%	\$19.8	73	%
Elevator motion control	6.1	21	%	6.1	23	%
Energy systems	1.1	4	%	1.1	4	%
Total net sales	\$28.3	100	%	\$27.0	100	%

Gross profit for the three months ended June 28, 2015, was \$10.4 million, or 36.7% of sales, versus \$9.7 million, or 36.0% of sales, for the three months ended June 29, 2014. The increase in gross profit as a percentage of sales for the three months ended June 28, 2015, as compared to the three months ended June 29, 2014, was mainly due to higher sales volume and improved sales mix in material handling markets.

Research and Development, Pension Expense, and Selling, General and Administrative

Research and development ("R&D") expense was \$0.8 million, or 2.8% of sales, for the three months ended June 28, 2015, comparable to R&D expense of \$0.8 million, or 2.9% of sales, for the three months ended June 29, 2014.

Pension expense was \$0.5 million and \$0.9 million for the three months ended June 28, 2015 and June 29, 2014, respectively (see Note 7 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements). The decrease in pension expense

was mainly due to a decrease in the interest cost component of pension expense resulting primarily from a significant year-over-year reduction in our projected pension benefit obligation.

Selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expense was \$5.9 million (20.8% of sales) for the three months ended June 28, 2015, versus \$5.3 million (19.4% of sales) for the three months ended June 29, 2014. Selling expenses in the three months ended June 28, 2015, increased to \$3.1 million from selling expenses of \$2.9 million in the three months ended June 29, 2014, mainly due to higher commissions and discretionary spending. General and administrative

16

Table of Contents

("G&A") expense increased to \$2.8 million for the three months ended June 28, 2015, compared to \$2.4 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014, mainly due to higher discretionary spending, stock compensation expense, and professional fees.

Income from Operations

Income from operations for the three months ended June 28, 2015, was \$3.2 million compared to income from operations of \$2.8 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014. The increase in income from operations for the three months ended June 28, 2015, as compared to the three months ended June 29, 2014, was mainly due to higher gross profit combined with lower pension expense, partially offset by higher SG&A expense in the three months ended June 28, 2015.

Interest Income

Interest income was negligible for the three months ended June 28, 2015 and June 29, 2014.

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded a negligible provision for income taxes for the three months ended June 28, 2015, compared to a provision for income taxes of \$0.2 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014. The income tax provision for the three months ended June 29, 2014 includes a non-cash deferred income tax provision of \$0.2 million related to changes in deferred tax liabilities from goodwill amortization for tax purposes.

Income from Continuing Operations

We recorded income from continuing operations of \$3.2 million for the three months ended June 28, 2015, or \$0.87 per diluted share, compared to income from continuing operations of \$2.5 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014, or \$0.74 per diluted share.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

We recorded a loss from discontinued operations of \$0.1 million, or a \$0.04 loss per share on a diluted basis, for the three months ended June 28, 2015, compared to a loss of \$0.2 million from discontinued operations, or a \$0.06 loss per share on a diluted basis, for the three months ended June 29, 2014.

Net Income

Our net income was \$3.0 million in the three months ended June 28, 2015, or \$0.83 per diluted share, compared to net income of \$2.3 million in the three months ended June 29, 2014, or \$0.68 per share on a diluted basis.

Results of Operations - Six Months Ended June 28, 2015, and June 29, 2014

Net Sales and Gross Profit

Net sales for the six months ended June 28, 2015, were \$55.0 million, an increase of 7.5% from the six months ended June 29, 2014, sales of \$51.1 million. The increase in sales was primarily due to higher sales of products into material handling and elevator markets. Net sales by major market were as follows, in millions:

Six Months Ended

Edgar Filing: ADVENTRX PHARMACEUTICALS INC - Form DEF 14A

	June 28, 201	June 28, 2015		4	
Material handling	\$40.6	74	% \$37.8	74	%
Elevator motion control	12.4	22	% 11.4	22	%
Energy systems	2.0	4	% 1.9	4	%
Total net sales	\$55.0	100	% \$51.1	100	%

17

Table of Contents

Gross profit for the six months ended June 28, 2015, was \$19.8 million, or 36.0% of sales, versus \$17.9 million, or 34.9% of sales, for the six months ended June 29, 2014. The increase in gross profit for the six months ended June 28, 2015, as compared to the six months ended June 29, 2014, was mainly due to increased sales volume and improved sales mix with more large projects in the current year, and to a lesser extent, lower provisions for excess renewable energy spare parts inventory and selective pricing actions on certain legacy products.

Research and Development, Pension Expense, and Selling, General and Administrative

R&D expense totaled \$1.7 million, or 3.1% of sales, for the six months ended June 28, 2015, comparable to R&D expense of \$1.6 million, or 3.1% of sales, for the six months ended June 29, 2014.

Pension expense was \$1.0 million and \$1.9 million for the six months ended June 28, 2015 and June 29, 2014, respectively (see Note 7 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements). The decrease in pension expense was mainly due to a decrease in the interest cost component of pension expense resulting mainly from a significant year-over-year reduction in our projected pension benefit obligation.

SG&A expense was \$11.4 million (20.7% of sales) for the six months ended June 28, 2015, compared to SG&A expense of \$10.2 million (20.0% of sales) for the six months ended June 29, 2014. Selling expenses in the six months ended June 28, 2015, increased to \$6.0 million from selling expenses of \$5.7 million in the six months ended June 29, 2014, due mainly to higher commissions and discretionary spending. G&A expense increased to \$5.4 million for the six months ended June 28, 2015, from \$4.5 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014, mainly due to higher discretionary spending, stock compensation expense, and professional fees. In addition, prior year G&A expense includes a favorable adjustment to a change in the Company's paid time off policy.

Income from Operations

Income from operations for the six months ended June 28, 2015, was \$5.7 million compared to income from operations of \$4.2 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014. The increase in income from operations for the six months ended June 28, 2015, as compared to the six months ended June 29, 2014, was mainly due to higher gross profit resulting from higher sales volume and improved sales mix, combined with lower pension expense, partially offset by higher SG&A expense in the six months ended June 28, 2015.

Interest Income

Interest income was negligible for the six months ended June 28, 2015 and June 29, 2014.

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded a a provision for income taxes of \$0.1 million for the six months ended June 28, 2015, compared to a provision for income taxes of \$0.5 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014. The income tax provision in both periods is comprised primarily of non-cash deferred income tax provisions related to changes in deferred tax liabilities from goodwill amortization for tax purposes.

Income from Continuing Operations

We recorded income from continuing operations of \$5.7 million for the six months ended June 28, 2015, or \$1.54 per diluted share, compared to income from continuing operations of \$3.7 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014, or \$1.10 per diluted share.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

We recorded a loss from discontinued operations for the six months ended June 28, 2015, of \$0.3 million, or a \$0.09 loss per share on a diluted basis, compared to a loss from discontinued operations of \$0.4 million, or a loss of \$0.11 on a per share, diluted basis, for the six months ended June 29, 2014.

18

Table of Contents

Net Income

Our net income was \$5.3 million in the six months ended June 28, 2015, or \$1.45 per diluted share, compared to net income of \$3.4 million in the six months ended June 29, 2014, or \$0.99 per share on a diluted basis.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our unrestricted cash and cash equivalent balance increased approximately \$3.4 million during the first six months of fiscal 2015, from \$9.7 million at December 28, 2014, to \$13.1 million at June 28, 2015. Restricted cash balances remained unchanged during the first six months of fiscal 2015 at \$0.3 million. The primary source of cash during the first six months of fiscal 2015 was income from continuing operations of \$5.7 million, which reflects non-cash expenses aggregating \$1.8 million for depreciation, amortization, pension, stock compensation, and deferred income tax provisions.

The primary use of cash in the first six months of fiscal 2015 was a \$2.4 million net increase in operating assets and liabilities. Accounts receivable balances increased \$0.5 million in the first six months of fiscal 2015, due mainly to an increase in days sales outstanding, which increased to approximately 56 days at June 28, 2015, as compared to approximately 53 days outstanding at December 28, 2014. Inventories increased \$0.6 million in the first six months of fiscal 2015, as inventory turnover declined to 5.0 turns from 5.2 turns at the beginning of fiscal 2015. Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities decreased by \$1.6 million during the first six months of fiscal 2015, due to payment in fiscal 2015 of incentive compensation amounts accrued as of December 28, 2014, and a decrease in accounts payable days outstanding. We also consumed cash of \$0.6 million related to discontinued operations activities and \$0.7 million for capital expenditures in the first six months of fiscal 2015.

In November 2007 we entered into an agreement with Associated Bank, N.A. ("Associated Bank") providing for a \$10 million revolving credit facility (the "revolving facility"). Borrowings under the revolving facility bore interest at the London Interbank Offering Rate ("LIBOR") plus 1.5%, with borrowing levels determined by a borrowing base formula as defined in the agreement, based on the level of eligible accounts receivable. The revolving facility also supports the issuance of letters of credit, places certain restrictions on our ability to pay dividends or make acquisitions, and includes covenants which require minimum operating profit levels and limit annual capital expenditures. Borrowings under the revolving facility were collateralized by our accounts receivable and inventory. We have subsequently entered into several amendments to the revolving facility, for purposes of extending the maturity dates of the revolving facility, increasing the commitment amount of the facility, and broadening the security interest of Associated Bank to include all assets of the Company.

On June 14, 2015, we entered into the ninth amendment to the revolving facility with Associated Bank, the purpose of which was to (i) extend the maturity date of the revolving facility to June 12, 2016; (ii) retain the commitment amount of Associated Bank at \$12.5 million; (iii) lower the interest rate from LIBOR plus 2.75% to LIBOR plus 2.25%; and (iv) establish a maximum cash amount that can be contributed to the Company's defined benefit pension plan for the term of the agreement.

Primarily as a result of the decline in interest rates over the past decade, the accumulated benefit obligation of our defined benefit pension plan currently exceeds plan assets. We contributed \$30 million to our pension plan in December 2006 following the divestiture of our power electronics business, and subsequently have made cash contributions to the plan aggregating \$94 million from April 2008 through December 2014, funded by cash generated from operations and existing cash on hand. Also in fiscal 2014, we made an excess voluntary contribution of 250,000 shares of Company common stock to our pension plan, valued at \$7.3 million at the time of contribution, in an effort to improve the funded status of the pension plan.

Based on current actuarial estimates, we are not required to make any mandatory pension cash contributions in fiscal 2015, while total future funding amounts to achieve fully funded status are estimated at approximately \$25 million.

Minimum required pension contributions in fiscal years 2016 through 2021 are currently projected at between \$2 million and \$4 million annually, again based on current actuarial projections.

The actual timing and amount of required plan contributions are dependent upon many factors, including returns on invested assets, the level of certain market interest rates, the discount rate and mortality assumptions used to determine pension obligations, voluntary contributions we may elect to make to pension plan assets, and other potential legislative and regulatory actions.

19

Table of Contents

Based upon current plans and business conditions, we believe that current cash balances and internally generated cash flows will be sufficient to fund anticipated operational needs, capital expenditures, required pension plan contributions, and other commitments over the next 12 months.

Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This document, including documents incorporated herein by reference, contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The words "believe," "expect," "estimate," "anticipate," "intend," "may," "might," "will," "would," "could," "project," and "predict," or similar words and phrases generally identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties which in many cases are beyond our control and which cannot be predicted or quantified. As a result, future events and actual results could differ materially from those set forth in, contemplated by, or underlying forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements contained in this document speak only as of the date of this document or, in the case of any document incorporated by reference from another document, the date of that document. We do not have any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement contained or incorporated by reference in these documents to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes to future operating results over time.

Our future results of operations and the other forward-looking statements contained in this filing, including this section titled "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," involve a number of risks and uncertainties. In particular, the statements regarding future economic conditions, our goals and strategies, new product introductions, penetration of new markets, projections of sales revenues and sales growth, manufacturing costs and operating costs, pricing of our products and raw materials required to manufacture our products, gross margin expectations, relocation and outsourcing of production capacity, capital spending, research and development expenses, the outcome of pending legal proceedings and environmental matters, payment of certain claims by insurance carriers, tax rates, sufficiency of funds to meet our needs including contributions to our defined benefit pension plan, and our plans for future operations, as well as our assumptions relating to the foregoing, are all subject to risks and uncertainties.

A number of factors could cause our actual results to differ materially from our expectations. We are subject to all of the business risks facing public companies, including business cycles and trends in the general economy, financial market conditions, changes in interest rates, demand variations and volatility, potential loss of key personnel, supply chain disruptions, government legislation and regulation, and natural causes. Additional risks and uncertainties include but are not limited to industry conditions, competitive factors such as technology and pricing pressures, business conditions in our served markets, dependence on significant customers, increased material costs, risks and costs associated with acquisitions and divestitures, environmental matters and the risk that our ultimate costs of doing business exceed present estimates. This list of risk factors is not all-inclusive, as other factors and unanticipated events could adversely affect our financial position or results of operations. Further information on factors that could affect our financial results can be found in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2014, under the heading "Risk Factors" as well as below in Part II, Item 1A under the heading "Risk Factors".

Item 3 – Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We did not have any debt outstanding at June 28, 2015. While we do have pension funding obligations which vary as interest rates change, those changes were not material in the six months ended June 28, 2015, from the amounts we disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2014.

We did not have any outstanding hedge instruments or foreign currency contracts outstanding at June 28, 2015, or June 29, 2014.

Item 4 – Controls and Procedures

In connection with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, under the direction of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and internal control over financial reporting and concluded that (i) our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 28, 2015; and (ii) no change in internal control over financial reporting occurred during the quarter ended June 28, 2015, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, such internal control over financial reporting.

20

Table of Contents

Attached as exhibits to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are certifications of the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, which are required in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. This "Controls and Procedures" section includes information concerning the controls and evaluation thereof referred to in the attached certifications, and it should be read in conjunction with the attached certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics presented.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1 – Legal Proceedings

Information about our legal proceedings is contained in Part I, Item 3, Legal Proceedings, and Note 10 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2014, which is incorporated herein by reference, and in Note 4 of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. Except as set forth in Note 4 of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we believe that there have been no other material developments with respect to these matters during the fiscal quarter ended June 28, 2015.

Item 1A – Risk Factors

There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2014.

Item 2 – Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

There were no unregistered sales of equity securities during our fiscal quarter ended June 28, 2015.

Item 3 – Defaults upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4 – Mine Safety Disclosures

None.

Item 5 – Other Information

None.

21

Table of Contents

Item 6 - Exhibits

(a) Index to Exhibits

- 2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 26, 2015, by and among Magnetek, Inc. (1)
- 3.1 Magnetek, Inc. Amended and Restated By-Laws (2)
- Ninth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of June 14, 2015, by and between the Company and Associated Bank, N.A. (3)
- Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. *
- Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. *
- Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. *

 Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and six months ended June 28, 2015 and June 29, 2014, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of
- 101 Comprehensive Income for the three and six months ended June 28, 2015 and June 29, 2014, (iii)
 Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 28, 2015 and December 28, 2014, (iv) Condensed
 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 28, 2015 and June 29, 2014, and
 (v) Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
- * Filed with this Report on Form 10-Q.
- (1) Previously filed with Form 8 K filed July 27, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference.
- (2) Previously filed with Form 8 K filed May 5, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference.
- (3) Previously filed with Form 8 K filed June 15, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference.

22

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

MAGNETEK, INC.

(Registrant)

Date: August 4, 2015 /s/ PETER M. MCCORMICK

Peter M. McCormick

President and Chief Executive Officer (Duly authorized officer of the Registrant

and principal executive officer)

Date: August 4, 2015 /s/ MARTY J. SCHWENNER

Marty J. Schwenner

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Duly authorized officer of the Registrant

and principal financial officer)

23